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INDEPENDENT ALUMTOR'S REPOMET

To the Members of Juniper lotels Privite Limited
Report on the Audit of the Siandalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Juniper Hotels Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as al March 31 2022, the Susement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year then ended, and notes 1o the standalone Ind AS financial stalements, incliding a summary of significant
aceounting policies and other explanatory mformation,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 0w, the aforesaid
slandalone Ind AS financial staterments give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, 1s amended
{“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and Tair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of atfairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its boss including other
comprehensive mcome, its cash flows and thee changes in equity for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for (rpinion

We conducted our audit of the standulone Ind AS financial siatements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(8As), as apecified under section 143( 10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the * Auditar's Responssbilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements” section of pur rapor,
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics” rssued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of [ndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial ssarements wnder ihe provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have Tulfilked our other etlical
respongibilities in acoordance with these requiremants and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence
wi have obtained s sulficient and appropriste to provide a bagis for our audit opmion on the standalone Ind AS
financial statemcnis.

Information (ther than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Baard of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other mformation comprises the
director™s report but does nod include the standabone Ind AS financial statements and our audstor’s report thereon.

Dr opiniom on the standalone lnd AS fmancial statements does not cover the ather mfonmation and we do not
cxpress any form of asurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our awdit of the standalone Ind A8 financial seatements, our responsibility is to read the other
mformation and, in doing so. consider whether such other information is materially inconsisient with the standalone
Ind A5 financial statements or our Knowledge obtuined i the sudit or otherwise appears to be materiallzxy
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is & material misstatement of this ather
information, we are required 1o report that fact, We have nothing to repost in this rogand,

Hesponsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalong Ind AS Financkal
Statemenis

The Company™s Board of Directors is responsible for the maticrs stated in section 134(3) of the Act with respect 1o
the preparation of these standalone Ind AS fimancial stalements that give & e and Gir view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generaily sccepted in India, including the Indim Accounting Standards
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(lrsd AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companics {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
I015, us mmended. This responsibility abs ineludes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularitics; selection and application of appropriste accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that gre reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequatc internal financial
comtrels, thal were operating effectively for ensurmy the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due (o frasd oF efror,

In preparing the standalone Ind AS linancial statements, management s responsible for asessing the Companys
ability 10 continue as a going concern, disclosing, a= applicable, matters related 10 going concem and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or s cease
operations, or has ro realistic alterative but 1o do so.

hose Board ol Directors are also responsible for oversseing the Company®s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Siatemenis

Cur objectives are to oblain neasonable assurance abowl whether the standalone Ind AS (inancial statements &< a
whole are Tree from materia) misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of sssurance but is not a guaraniee that an audit conducted
in dccordance with SAs will always detect 8 material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise frosm
fraud or eror and sre considered material i, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users daken on the basis of these stundalone Ind A% finoncial stafements.

As pant of an sudit in accosdance with SAs, we exerclse professional judgment and maintain professional skepticiam
throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial stitements, whether
due 1o fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sulficient s appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nol detecting @ material
misstalement resulting from froud is higher than for one resulting from ermor. as fraud may invobve collusion,
forgery, intentional ;enissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of internal control

*  Obtain an understanding of mternal control relevant o the audit in order to design audit procedures that arc
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financizl controls with reference o standalone
Ind AS financial slatements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the approprigtensss of sccounting policies used and the repsonableness of dccounting cstimates and
related disclosures made by management,

*  Conclude on the apprepriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, hused
an the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company s ahility lo continee & a g concern. 1Fwe conclude that a material
UNCEMILNGY exisis, we are requined to draw attention i our aeditor™s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone Ind AS financial sialements or, if such disclomures are inadequate, to madify our apinion. Chr
conclusions ang based on the audit evidence obtained up fo the date of our auditor’s report. owever, future
events or conditions may cause the Company io cease to conlinue s 2 £oing concermn,

Evilume the overall presentation, structure and content of the standatone Ind AS financial statements,
ncluding the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statememts represent the underlying
transactions and events in & manner that schicves fair presentation

Mo
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We commumnicate with those charged with governinee regarding, among other mattcrs, the planned seope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
dluring our audit,

We also provide those churged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and 1o communicate wilh them all relationships and other matters that miry
reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safepuards.

Crther Matter

The standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company Tor the vear ended March 31, 2021, included in these
standalone Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmeodified
opinion on those statermenis on September 27, 2021,

Report on Chther Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Reporth Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {1 1) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Ammexure |™ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report tht

e

(4} We have stught and oblained all the information and explanations which w the best of aur knowlcdge
and beliel were necessary for the purpioses of oar sudit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 5o far a5 i
apprears from our examination of those books:

(e} The Balance Sheet, the Sttement of Profit and Loss incliding the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Repaort are in
agreement with the books of sccount;

{d} In our opinon, the aforesaid standalone Ind A% financial staements comply with the Accoumting
Standurds specificd under Section 133 of the Ad, read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rubes, 2005, as amendded:

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the direclors as on March A, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(1) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Repoet in
“Annesure 27 o this reporn;

(g} The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule ¥ of the Act are not applicable to the Compuiny for ihe
yeur ended March 30, 2022

{h} With respecl to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Bules, 2014, as smended in our opinion snd o the best of our
information and according 1o the explanations given 1o us:

w,_.
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i The Company hos disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements  Refer MNote 40 to the standabone Ind AS financial
skatcinents;

. The Company did mot have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseenkble losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required o be transferred 1o the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,

iv. ) The management has represented that, 10 the best of its knowledge and belicf, as disclosed in the
nate AB(v] to the standalone [nd AS financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
inviested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) bry
the Company to of in any other persons or enlities, including foreign entities  Imermediaries"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in ony manmer
whatsaever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneliciaries™} or provide any guarantes,
segurity or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneliciaries;

b} The management has represenied that, to the best of its knowledue and belicl, as disclosed in the
note A8{vi) i the standalone Ind AS financial stastements, no funds have boen received by the
Company from any persons or entities, inchuding foreign entities {“Funding Marties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwisc, that the Comgany shall, whether, directly
ar indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (~Ulimate Beneficiarics™) or provide any goarantce, security or the
Iike on behalf of the Ultimate Bensficiarics; and

¢} Biesed on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonabile and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come o our notice that has caused s to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

¥, Nodividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
For SR B C & OO LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Mumber: 324982 E/E300003
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ANNEXURE “1" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS™ OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

RE: Juniper Hotels Private Limited (“the Company™)

(i (4] A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, inchuting quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intengibles gzaets.

(b3 Al Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management during the
yeir but there is regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
1o the size of the Company and the naure of its &ssers. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(e} The title deeds of immovable properties (other than propertics where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 3(a) to the standafone [ind
AS fimuncial statements included iin property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company.
Cenain title deeds of the immovable propertics, in the nature of frechold land and buildings, as indicated
in the below mentioned cases whise tithe deeds have been pledped as security for loans are held in the
erstwhile name of the Company based on the confirmation received by us from lenders.

Deseription:  of | Gross camrving | Tile  deeds | Whether tille Property  held | Reason for mot being
stem of property | value held in the | deed holder isa | since  which | held in the name of
(IME i lakhs) | name of promester, date the coanpany
director ar
relnfive of
promwsterdiresior
or employes of
: - : promoter/director | =
Frehiold N0 120,451 | Seapuli No October 27, The  walue  of
admedsuring Property  and 1954 buildng on  the
B1816.63  sgm) Yinivos frechald land is INR
rbd Building Limited 36,988 lakhs,
sciled at Mumbai The iile documwent
was i the name of
Seajuli Property and
WVinivog  Limited,
erstwhile name  of
the Company.

Subsequem 1 the
vear end, the title
desds  have  lseen
changed in the nume
of Juniper Hodels
Private Limited
effective  Jume 21,
. P

(d}  The Company has not revalued fis Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assels during the vear ended March 31, 2022,

(e} There are no peoceedings initialed or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Bepami Property Tranaactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereander.

_h[.,.
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{ii}  {2) The management has conducted physical verification of invertory at reasonable intervals during the

{h}

year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by he management is
appropriate. Discrepancics of 10% or more in aggregate for cach class of inventory were not noticed
oi such physieal verification,

As disclosed in note 17 and note 22 1o the standalone Ind AS financial statements, the Company has
boen sanctioned working capitil Fimits in excess of Re. five crores in smggregate from banks during the
year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in
the noemal course of aodit of the standalone Ind AS financial stements, the guarerly
retums/statements filed by the Company with such binks ane in agreement with the books of accounts
ol the Company,

(i) a) Duwring the year, the Company has nod provided advances in the nature of boan, stood guaranice or

(v}

vl

(b}

fed

(d}
L)
(n

provided security 1o companics, fims, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Further,
during the year the Company has provided loans to the Companies as follows:

Particulars § ﬁ__ ﬁﬁ.m-ﬂnm

| Aggregate amount of gusrantee provided during the year =
.- Subsidiary e —— 0.52
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet dae in respect of above cases
- Subsidiaries ; i 6240

Liuring the year, the Company has nof made investment, provided guaraniee, provided security and
granted advances in the nature of loan to companies, firma, Limitad Lisbility Partnerships or any other
partics. Further, during the year loan provided to companies are not prejudicial to the Company's
interest.

The Company has granted loan 1o the companies and repayment of principisl and pavment of interest i
due on demand, The Company has nol demanded the payment of interest and repayment of principal

amount during the current vear,
There are no amount of kans grinted (o companies which are overdue for more tham ninety days.
I'here were no boans grantesd 10 companies which had fallen due during the vear.

As disclosed in note 7 1o the financial staterment, the Company has grinted loan repayable on demand.
OF these Tollowing are the detnils of aggregate amount of loans granted to promoters or related parties
a5 defined in clase {76} of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013;

Agprepale amount of loans
= Repavable on demand B
Percentage of loans to the toal loans 1007 - 100%

Amount {INKE Lakhs

There are no loans, investments, puorantess, and security in respect ol which provisions of scctions 185
and 186 of the Companics Act, 2003 are applicable and accordingly. the requivement to report on clause
v of the Order 1s not applicable 1o the Company.

The Company has neither accepted uny deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed fo be deposits within the meaning of séctions 73 1o 76 of the Companics Act and the rules made

-
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I

thereunder, 1o the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requircment 1o report on clause 3{v) of the Order
15 nid applicable o the Company.

ivi)

[vii} {a)

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed,

Accardingly, the requirement 1o report on clause 3(vi) of the Onder i= not applicable to the Company.

The Company is geaenilly regular in depositing with appropriaie authorities undsputed statutory dues
meluding goods and services tax, provident fund, imcome-tax, customs duty, cess, employees’ siate
insurance cofporation and other statutory ducs applicable 1o . According to the information and
explanations given io us and bused on sudit procichures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the vear end, for a period of more than six months

froem The date they became paryabli.

{h] The dues of income-tax, Property tax Luxury tax, Valee added tax and other statutory dues have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, are os follows:

Lwiki)

fixpia)

()

(e}
i

Mume of Statute

Mature of Dues

Ineome Tax Act,
%61

Incowme Tax

Imegwme |ax

ﬁ.l‘ll!in:‘l
{IMR i Laklhs)

Feriod to wiich the
Amount Relates

2503

Fo¥. 2000 - 2001t
F.¥. 2 - 2003

Forum where Dispuie is
Pending

Income Tax Appellae
Tribimal

36,04

F.Y. 2013-2014

Commissioner of Income

Tax (Appeals)

Mumbai
Municigsal
Corporadion Act,
| HRR

Property Tay

BO2.T6

F.Y, 2000-2011 (o
FY. 2021-2022

Bombay High Court

Maharashir
Value Added Tax

Act, 2002

Valie Added

Tax

135.71

F¥. 200°7- 2008

Joint Commissioner of
Sales Tax, Appeals 1V,
Murn bai

Valuw Added
Tax

2571

FY. 200 -2002

Joint Commissioner of
Sales Tax, Appeals 1V,
Mumbai

Muharashtra Tax
on Luxuries Act,
1987

Luxury Tasx

BE.95

F. 2 4-2015

Joint Commissioner of
Sales Tax, Appeals IV,
Mumbsii

The Company hos not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously anrecorded in the books of
account, in the fax asscesments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the vear.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{viil} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or ather berrowings or in the poyment of interest
thiergon b any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
oF any goveriment authority.

Ferm loans were applied for the purpose for which the leans were obiained

Cin an overall examination of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company. the Company
his used funds mised on short-term basis aggregating to INR 126,86.65 lakhs for long-term pusposes,

M
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(=} ta)
(k)
[xid {a)

O i ivveral| examination of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any funds from any enlity or person on account of or to meet the ubligations of ils
subsidiary, Further, the Company does nod hive any associate or joint venture.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of sceurities held in its subsidiary.
Further, the Company docs not have any associate of joiir veniure,

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further pubilis
affer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement io report on clause 3(x¥a) of the Order is ot
applicable e the Compramy,

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or privase plicement of shares /fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report
an clause J{x}h] of the Order is ned applicable fo the Campany.,

Neo fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

i} During the yvear, ne report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been

filed by cost auditor, secretannl auditor or by 1% in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2012 with the Central Government,

{c) As represented 1o us by the management, there arc no whissle blower complaints received by the

CEAT]

(xiii)

ixiv)

{xv)

(uvil

Company during the v,

The Company is nod a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Therefore, the
requirement 1o Teport on clause 3(xiiNaMbic) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Fransactions with the related parties are In compliance with sections | 88 of Companics Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes 1o the standalone Ind A% financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of sectien 177 are not applicable 1o
the Company and accordingly the requirements 1o report under clause 3(xiii} of the Order insofar as it
relates to section 177 of the Act B not applicable to the Company.

{a) Though the Company is required to have an internal sudit system under section 138 of the Act, il does
merl hinve the same established for the year.

Lh} W were unable 1o obitzin any of the intemnal andit reports of the Company, hence internal audin reports
have mot been considered by us.

The Company has ol entered into any non-cash ramsactions with its directors or persons connected with
i85 directors and hence requirement o report on clause 3xv) of the Order is noi applicable 1o the
Company,

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A ol the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable
1o the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 xviXa) of the Order is not apphicable
to the Company,

(b}The Company is nol engaged in any MNon-Banking Financial or Howsing Finance activities.
Aciordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢} The Company is not a Core lnvestimen| Company as defincd in the regulations made by Reserve Hank
of Indin. Accordingly, the requircment to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is sot applicable 1o the

Company.

N
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ixvib)

{xvi}

(xixd

{ax}

{d} There is no Core livestment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clwuse 3(xviNd) of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to INR 1141119 lakhs in the current vear and
amounting to INR 16,399,753 lokhs in the immodiately preceding financial vear respectively

There has been no resignation of the statwory auditers during the vear and secordingly requirement Lo
report on Clause Hxviii) of the Order 1 not applicable to the Company.

O the basis of the nancial ratios dischosed i note 37 and as disclosed i note 47 10 the standalone Ind
A5 DNnancial statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial asseis and payment of
financial lishilities, other information sccompanying the standalone Ind A% financial statements, our
knowlcdge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assamptions, nothing has come to our attention, which catses us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists 15 on the date of the audit report that Company is nof capable of meeting
ies Habilities existing al the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheer date, We, however. state that this is nol an assurance as to the future wviahility of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up 1o the date of the audit report
and we neither give &ny guarintee nor any assurance that all Rabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheel date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation 1o Corporate Social Responsibility
is not applicable 1o the Company. Accordingly, the requiremient 1o report on clause 3xx¥a) and () of
ithe Chder is nol applicable o the Company,

ForS B BOC& OO LLP

Chantered Accountants

ICA| Firm Regisirption Number: 32498 E/E 30003
N gt

runs Kumaraswamy

Fartmer

Memberslip Mumber: 219350
LIOIN: 222193 30A0PCGA TS
Place of Sigiatare: Mombai
Dite: Aupust 08, 2022
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ANNEXLURE I T THE INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S HREPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF JUNIFER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controbs under Clawse (i) of Sub=scetion 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2003 (“the Aet™)

We have audiled the internal financial controls with reference to standabone Ind AS financial statements of’ Juniper
Hoeels Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind
AS financial staterments of the Company for the vear ended on th date.

Management's Responsibiity for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal fisancial controls based on
the imtermal contrel over fmancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nate on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chanered Accountants of [ndia (“ICAT")]. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating cffectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, in¢luding adherence to the Company™s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the sccuracy and completeness of the
accoumnting records, amd the limely preparation of relishle financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 203,

Auditor's Hesponsibility

Our responsibility is to cxpress an opindon on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 1o these
standalone Ind AS financial stmements based on our audil. We conducted our audit in sccordance with the Guidance
Mot on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standarcs on
Auditing. & specified under section 145(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both veued by ICAL Those Standards and the CGuidance Mote require thal we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate mternal
financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS limancial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respecis.

Chur audit involves performing procedures 1o oblain audit evidence aboul the adequacy of the inermal financial
comtrols with refierence to these standalone Ind AS Mnancial staements and their operating effectiveness. Our audii
of mniernal financial controls with reference 1o standalone Ind AS financial statements included obfaining an
understand ing of internal linancial controls with reference o these slandabone Ind A% financial statements, dssessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and cvaluating the design and operating effectivencss of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
aegssment of the risks of material misstatement of the sandalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
or errar,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriale 1o provide a basis for our audit
opinian on the Company *s imemial fnamcial contrals with reférence to these standalone Ind A% financial slatements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Wiith Reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Siatéments

A company’s mienal financial controls with reference 10 standalone Ind AS financial statements is a process
designed 10 provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial stastements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles. A
company’s internal fnancial controls with reference o standalone Ind AS financial ststements includes those
podicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records thal, in ressonable detail. accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (1) provide remsonable assurance that
tramsactions are recorded as necessary to permil preparstion of sandalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance
with generally accepled acomunting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

b
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only m accordance with guthorizations of mmmagement and directaors of ihe cormpany; and (2} provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
nasets that could hove a material effect on the standabone [nd AS financial stilements

Imheremi Limitations of Infernal Financial Conirols With Reference (0 Siandalooe Ind AS Financial
Stalemenis

Bocause of e inherent himitadtions of intermal finnncial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS Nnaiscial
statemnents, including the possibility of collusion or Emproper management override of controls, musterial
misstatemernts due fo ermor or frasd may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the iniermal
finincinl controfs with reference 1o standalone Ind AS financial statements to fulure periods are subject 1o the risk
that the intemal fimancial control with reference 1o standalone Ind AS financial siatements may become inadequate
because of chunges in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Dipimion

I oikr apinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate infernal financial controls with reference o
standalone Ind AS Tinancial statements and such intemal fimancial controls with reference o standalone [nd AS
financial satements were operating effectively as al March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reporling criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intermal control stated in the
Ciuidance Mone isswed by the ICAL

Fors R BC & CO LLF
Chartered Accountants
Firm Hegistration Mumber: 324982 E/ 300003

.P(;;:’MK

per Aruna Kumaraswamy
Partmer

Membership Mumber: 219350
UDIN: 232 10350A0PCGA TS5
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Dinte: Awgust 08, 3003
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BOARD'S REPORT

To

The Members

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 36th Annual Report of your Commpany together with its
Audited Financial Statements and the Auditors' Report thereon for the financial year ended March 31,
2022,

FINANCIAL RESULTS
{Rs.in Crores)
Standalone Consollidated
Particulars (As per Ind-AS) (As per Ind-AS)
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Sales and Other Income 343.80 192.86 343.75 192.85
Profit before Interest and Depreciation 101.52 22.22 101.47 2220
Interest 215.63 186.21 215.63 186.21
Proft/(Loss) before Depreciation -114.11 -163.99 -114.16 164.00
Depreciation 99.93 105.40 9903 105.40
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax -214.05 ~Z5%.28 21410 «269.40
Provision for Deferred Tax -25.89 -6 AR -26.07 ~65.00
Liability /[Aszet)
Short/(Excess) Provision of Previous . 492 - -4.97
Years
Profit /{Loss) After tax -188.15 -19960 | -188.03 -199.49
Other Comprehensive Income 0.5 0.10 50 0.10
Total Comprehensive (Loss)/Income for ! .
the yaar 187.66 199.50 -18753 -199.39
]I?::I:nca brought forward from previous 37824 57775 400.19 594,50
Amount available for Appropriation 190.59 378.25 212.67 4+00.20
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 190.59 378.25 212.67 400.20

During the vear under review, the Cempany, on standalone basis, achieved a total turnover of Rs
343.80 Crores [Rs 192,86 Crores in 2020-21) on which it made Profit/ [Loss) before Tax of Rs. {214.05)
Crores (Rs (269.38) Crores loss in the previous year Z020-21), After accounting for net tax provision,
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the Company's Net Profit/{Loss) for the vear amounted to Rs, (187.66) Crores as against Rs, (199.60)
Crores in previous year 2020-21).

DIVIDEND
Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2022,

OVERVIEW OF THE TRAVEL AND HOSPITALITY INDUSTRY

Global scenario:

According to the World Travel & Tourism Council (WTTC), the global Travel & Tourism sectar is
expected to contribute $8.35 trillion in 2022 and $9.6 trillion in 2023 to the global economy, a return to
its pre-pandemic level. In 2019, tourism accounted for a tenth of global GDP and jobs. In 2020, the
pandemic led to a 49% or $4.5 trillion decline in travel and tourism due to lockdowns and mobility
restrictions, leaving 62 million people jobless.

As the pandemic is no Jonger acute, the global travel and tourfsm market is expected to recover and
reach pre pandemic levels in 2023, As per the WTTC, the continuation of the ongoing vaccine and
booster rollout, and easing of restrictions to international travel, could result in 58 million new jobs in
2022, to reach more than 330 million, almest at pre-pandemic levels. In Asia-Pacific, the hospitality
industry will lilely be $3.4 trillion in 2023, above the $3.3 trillion size in 2019 Compared with North
America and Europe, travel has lagged in the Asia-Pacific region because of strict horder restrictions in
many countries, In Southeast Aska, travel has restarted as entry and COVID-19 quarantine rules are
eased. Over the long-term, the travel and tourism industry is expected to post an snnual average growth
rate of 5.8% from 2022 to 2032 versus the 2.7% increase in global GDP, and create 126 million jobs
new jobs within the next decade

The rich and varied culture of India makes it a major travel destination for many international tourists.
The year 2021 turned out to be a recovery year for the Indian travel and hospitality sector post the
2020 pandemic,

The Tourism and Hospitality industry is one of the largest service Industries in Indla. For the past
decade, the tourism sector accounted for about 7% of India’s GDP. In FY2020, the industry accounted
for 39 million jobs, which is projected to increase to 53 million jobs by 2027,

There is significant pent-up demand for tourism in the domestic market dup to restrictions imposed
over the last two years caused by the pandemic. Also, the diversion of outbound leicure travel to
domestic tourism has been positive for the Indian hospitality sector. Therefore, domestic tourism is
expected to recover faster than international travel. The 100% FDI in the hotel and tourism sector will
lead to more investments in the country through the automatic route, Announcements around PM Gati
Shakti for multi modal transport, 400 new Vande Bharat trains, integrated connectivity between
railway stations and PM's Development Initiatives for North-East, etc. will have medium to long term
growth implications for tourism in India,

While the earlier part of Q4 started to witness an impact due to the Omicron wave, the quarter was the
best performing period of the year bolstered by long weekends, festivals and social gatherings. The
sector witnessed a doubling of Revenue Per Available Room [RevPAR).
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INDUSTRY TREND POST PANDEMIC

The increased emphasis on digital channels to establish a distinct online presence is extremely
beneficial to business. The epidemic has driven customers to use digital booking mediums after
carefully reading enline reviews, which eventually influence their booking decision.

The growing middle class, rising levels of their disposable income, increasing interest among
millennials to travel in their home country are a few major reasons that are making the domestic travel
industry more profitable,

In the aftermath of the epidemic, guests’ top priorities are sanitation, safety, and contactless services. As
a response, the industry is embracing technology at a rapid speed in order to keep up with guest
changing expectations. One of the significant changes brought about by the pandemic is the way people
work. With the rise of the hybrid working model, people are experimenting with their work settings by
traveling to new locations and working from there

The Board at this stage in extremely positive and focused on your financial situation.
OPFPORTUNITIES

Your Directors are pleased to inform the Members that the Company have handed over the parcel of
land at Grand Hyatt Mumbai to the regulatory authorities which was required as part of hotel building
conversion from Industrial to Commercial with this the Company got double Transfer Development
Rights (TDR} which are saleable in open market. Further, the Company also retzined 948 square mebers
of land which is added to the existing plot of Grand Hyatt Mumbai. In addition to this, the Company paid
the FSl premium and got additional Floor Space Index (FSI) of 16255 square meters which can be
utilized to construct additional 2.5 Aoors on the existing building of Grand Hyatt Mumbai in future.

BOARD OF MRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company has been duly constituted with the following Directors:

Name Designation
Mr. Arun Kumar Sarafl Managing Director

| Mr. Umesh Saraf Non - Executive Director
Mrs. Pallavi Shardul Shroff Independent Director
Mr. Peter Fulton Non - Executive Director
Mr. David Peters Non-Executive Director
Mr. Adam K Rohman Non-Executive Director

During the year under review, the Board of Directors met four times. The Board Meetings were held in
Mumbai. The maximum interval between any two Meetings did not exceed the stipulated period of 120
days.
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COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee constituted by the Board consists of 3 Members as under:

Name of Committee Members

Mrs. Pallavi Shardul Shroff, Independent Director

Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf, Managing Director
Mr. David Peters, Director '

During the year 2021-22, the Audit Committes met one Hime,
AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Auditor’s Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark, or disclaimer. No
fraud has been reported by the Auditor under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 requiring
disclosure in the Board's Report. The notes to accounts referred to in the Auditors’ report are self-
explanatory and therefore do not call for any further clarifications under Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

At the Company's 35% AGM held on September 28, 2021, M/s SR B C & CO LLP (Firm Registration
Number 324982E/E300003), Chartered Accou ntants, has been appointed as the Statutory Auditor of
the Company for a term of 5 years to hold office from the conclusion of the 354 Annual General Meeting
until the conclusion of the 40 Annual General Meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors based on the representations
received [rom the management confirms that:

(a} In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
fallowed along with proper explanation relati fg to material departures;

(B) The Directors have selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasenable and prudent 50 as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for that period.

() The Directors have taken proper and enough care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.
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[d) The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a geing concern basis. Below is the note of
Directors assessment on the Going Concern:

ASSESSMENT OF GOING CONCERN:

The Board of Directors has assessed the impact during the yvear on account of COVID-19. During
the first three months of the year, the Company witnessed softer revenues die to the second
wave of COVID-19 and consequent lockdowns in several states across the country. Also, there
was a third wave in the month of January 2022, resulting [n restrictions In some states, which
also impacted the revenues. However, with increased vaceinations and consequent reduction in
number of cases and easing of all restrictions, the Com pany has witnessed strong recovery in
both leisure and business segments in all the other months.

The Company had Positive Earnings before Interest, Tax and Depreciation (EBITDA) in financial
year 2021-22. The shareholders proactively arranged the funds to meet the short-term and the
long-term fund reguirements of the Company. The Company continues to maintained its track
record of servicing all its debt obligation on time,

The Board of Directors based on the management plans have concluded that there is no material
uncertainty on the ability of the Company to continue as Eoing concern and the finamcial
statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

[£) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be tollowed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION'
AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Commitles
are not applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Loans

Mahima Holding Private Limited., a 100% subsidiary of the Company, has not been generating any
revenue and it could not pay the interest of Rs. 4.10 Lacs accrued on the loans provided to it by the
Company and in view of this, the accrued interest has been added to the principal. The loans
outstanding from the Mahima after the addition of the unpaid interest stand at Rs, 62.40 Lacs (Rs. 57.49
Lacs as at end of the previous year 2020-21). Apart from these loans, the Company has not given any
other loans covered by Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,
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Guarantees
The Company has not provided guarantees to any Company.
Investments

The Company's investment in the share capital of its 100% subsidiary, Mahima Holding Private Ltd.
amounts to Rs 5.99 Crores as on 31= March, 2022 (Rs. 5.99 Crores as at the end of the previous year
2020-21).

The Company follows the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contractsfarrangements/ transactions entered by the Company as defined under Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company has not entered into any contract /
arrangement, transaction with related parties which could be considered material in accordance with
the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions. Details of the related party
transactions are given in the Financial Statements forming part of the Board's Report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
Mo amount has been proposed o be transferred to the Reserves of the Company,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and the date of the
Report.

STATEMENT CONCERING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The Hotel essentially caters to the business community and the revenue stream is directly proportional
to the growth in the other sectors. Further, the increase in inventory of rooms within a radius of 5 kms
would adversely affect the revenue of the Hotel. The Company's marketing team is making concerted
effort to mitigate the adverse effects by drawing up an appropriate strategy under the guidance of the
Management
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DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consisting of two Members:

Name of Committee Members
| Mr. Varun Saraf, Alternate Director (till 23.03.2022)
| Mr Arun KEumar Saral, Manaping Director

The Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility formulated by the Committee has been adopted by the
Board. The CSR spent is based on the average net profit of the Company of the preceding three years.

On account of loss during the Jast three fnancial years from FY 2018-19 to - FY 2020-2021, there was
no statutory requirement for the Company to spend 2% of the net profit, towards CSR activities &
Sustainability during the vear under review.

SUBSIDIARIES. JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

As on date, your Company has one subsidiary company - Mahima Holding Private Limited.

The Annual Report and the Audited Statement of Accounts of Mahima Holding Private Limited along
with the Report of the Auditors thereon lor the year ended 31st March, 2022 are annexed to this
Board's Report together with draft consolidated financials.

EXTRACT OF ANNUIAL RETURN
As per the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 an extract of the annual return in

Form No MGT 9 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is annexed as
Annexure I herewith and forms a part of this report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS, TRIBUNALS
IMFACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

No significant and material orders have been passed by the Regulators, Courts, and Tribunals impacting
the Going Concern Status and Company's operations in future.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,
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STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

1) Conservation of Energy

The Company has been continuously getting energy audit conducted through external agencies and
installing equipments/machinery as recommended by them. This has resulted in saving of power in
terms of units. Further, the Company is constantly taking effective steps to upgrade the efficiency of
the existing utilities. The 2MW wind turbine installed in lath District, Maharashtra, has completed
two full years of operation and has generated 2,344,688 units in 2021-22 (2,205,053 units in the
previcus year 2020-21).

Z) Technology Abserption
As the Company does not have any significant manufacturing operations as such and its Hotel forms
part of the service industry, particulars pertaining to technelogy absorption are not applicable to it

3) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Foreign Exchange earned during the yvear under review amounted 1o Rs. 28.20 Crores (previous
year Rs. 16.12 Crores) and foreign exchange outgo was equivalent to Rs, 21,78 Crores. (previous
year Rs. 21.36 Crores).

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Your Company continues to take new initiatives to further align its HR policies to meet the Browing
needs of its business. People development continues to be a key focus area of the Company. The
industrial relations in all the units of the Company remained cordial and peaceful throughout the year.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board has put in place adequate internal controls commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company. During the year, such controls were tested and no material weakness in the design or
operation was ohserved.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of the business during the year under review.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors have submitted a declaration that each of them meets the criteria far
Independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and there has been no change in the
circumstances which may affect their status as an Independent Director during the vear under review,

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Compames Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies [Meetings of
Board and its Powers] Rules, 2014, the Lompany has established a vigil mechanism for its directors and
employees to report their genuine conterns/grievances. The mechanism also provides for adeguate
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safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and makes provisions for direct
access 1o the Audit Committee Chairman.

Your company hereby affirms that no Director/Employee has been denied access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the VT,

GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting s required in respect of the following items as
there were no applicable transactions during the vear under review:

L. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise,

2. lIssue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.

3. The Managing Director does not receive any remuneration or commission from the Company’s
subsidiary.

INSURANCE

All the assets of the Company including inventories, buildings, plant and machinery are adequately
insured.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company, even though a Private Limited Company, voluntarily follows the rigorous Corporate
Governance requirements under the SEBI Guidelines applicable to Listed Companies.

Similarly, although statutorily net required to do so, the Company has constituted an Audit Commitiee
of the Board which at present consists of three Members as on March 31st, 2022, The Committes mests
at regular internal (except in year 2021-22), wherein It met 1 time due to Covid 19 and reviewed the
controls and appropriate systems in place The Company took, wherever required, corrective action as
suggested by the Committee and internal audit reports.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has zero tolerance policy against sexual harassment defined as any unwelcome sexually
determined behavior.

During the Financial Year 2021-22, NO complaints with allegations of any kind of sexual harassment
were filed with the company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATION

Your directors would like to express its sincere appreciation and gratitude to the company's valued
customers, the Government of India, State Governments, varicus Financial Institution(s) and Banks for
their continued support and confidence in the Company. The Board would also like to place on record
its deep sense of appreclation for the continued confidence reposed in the Company by the
Shareholders as well as the sincere efforts put in by the executives and staff at all levels for progress of
the company.
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_By Order of the Board of Directors

Peter Fulton ! Arun Euma{Lraf

Director Managing Director
DN - 2227963 DIN - 00339772
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JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LINITED
Balamce Sheet as at March 31, 2022
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Other non-curnant assets
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Cacshi and Cadhy gquivalens
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- Cnher lingeatial asety
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JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended Mu‘ch 31, 2022

%m ] ; | Note Fﬂfﬁt
Pa q-s sl -1 R S Mo, March 31, i ﬂ%
1 = 1 ﬁ i :Ié {Tin Lﬂunj Lih:!lsi
Ilﬂl:l'.ll‘“!
| Revenue from operations 27 30,8G6E.848 16,635,10
Dther income 2B 351116 2.651.15
i [Total Income (I + 11} 34,380.04 15,286.25
I |Expenses
Food and beverages consumed 9 2.706.06 1,432.78
Ermployee benefits expentes 30 T.564.30 580793
Finance costs 31 21 562.8% 18,621,320
Depreciation and amortization expenses a2 9003 85 10,539.55
Other expenses 33 13 85802 5,823.99
Tatal expenses (V) 55, 7H5.08 A6,225,59
V |Loss before tax (Il - V) (21,205.04) {26,939.34)
VI |Tax expence 34
Currgnt tax -
Adpustrment of tax relating to earlier periods - [491.55)
Daferred tax {2.580.34} {6, 487.73)
Total tax expenses (V1) [2,589.34) (6,579.28)|
Wil [Lass for the year (W - Wi} [1E,#15.70) [15,960.06]|
Vill {Other Comprahensive Income
e that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a] Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 7701 14.85
{b) Delerred tax relating to item (a) above {26.91) {5.19)|
Total other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (Vill) 50,10 9,66
IX [Total Comprehensive Loss fior the year (VI = vil) {18,765.60) [15,950.40)
X |Earning per equity share (Face Value of T 10 each)
Basic and diluted () {13.09)| {13.89)
Significant Am% Palicies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For SRBCECDLLP For and on bihalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Juniper Hotels Private Limited
ICAl Firm Registration No.; 324982E/E300003
p— : - _— - '-.I 1
e oy B = I"l =
; :_LLLF_;M— ~ — ﬂ_@ﬁgﬁj\ﬂ{f
per Aruna Kumaraswamy % Peter Fulton Arun Kumar Saraf
Fartner Director Managing Director
kembership No.: 219350 DIN: 022279563 DIN: Q0339772

Place: Mumbai .,
Date: L.ﬁu_,l:.i ¥ 200

Place: Mumbai
Date: Augusi 08, 2022

Company Secretary



JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

= wa i = & = | For the year ended * For the year ended
;Hﬂwhnlf = . i ‘March 31, il mrdi!_l#
= i . _@intokhs) | [Xin Lakh
l. Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax [IIME.MFI {26,939.34)
Adjustrments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 89,9493 .85 10,539,548
Finance Cost 21,562 85 18.621.30
Bad Debts written off 3268 G611
Allowances for doubtful debts/advances B.3n 9842
Interest income from financial assets measured at amortized cost {120.13) {95.77)
Interest income an Tax Refund [35.93) {312.23)
Gain on dispasal of Property, plant and eguipment {net) [21.45) 10.25)
Credit balance no longer payable written back [152.61) 1Ba6.42)
Unrealized gain on fareign exchange fluctuation {met) {438.77)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 8, B62.52 B75.64
Adjustments for {increase) / decrease in operating assets;
Inventories {6803 266,16
Trade receivables [574.72) BE3 16
Other financial assets {755.84) 261.55
Other non-financial assets {1,132 .83) 531
Adjustments for [Increase) / decrease in operating Habilities:
Trade payvables {6,530.31) 2,848 96
Other financizl Kakilities (225.84) (581 .DB]I
Other non-financial llabilities {3.628.71) (1,895.03)
Pravisions 140,08 92 34
Changes in working capital [12,796.20} 1,701.38
Cash ganerated from operations (2,933.68) 2.577.02
Feome taxes (palkd] f refund [F10.80) 2. 7E0.64
Net cash generated from operating activities {3,644.48) 5,357.66
L. investi i
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
{Including capital advances and capital work-in-progress) {5.606.05) Imquh
Proceeds fram disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 21.45 0.25
Loans given to subsidiary company [4.91)| MEJ!J|
Fixed deposits placed including margin money (net) [EED.29) (6,00}
Proceeds from Sale of Investments 4,02 :
Interest received 157,18 7.0
Net cash used in investing activities {6,308.60) {780.40)
i Cash fiows from financing activities
Proceeds from Long Term Barrowings 73,881.03 13.727.65
Repayment of Lang Term Borrowings (a3, 760.05)| (1,192 34}
Proceeds / Repayment of Short Term Borrowings [Net] IR, 79 (599.89)
Finance Cost pald (18,666.75) {15, 797.57)
Payment of Lease Liaksility [2,449.23) [2B6.02)
Met cash used in financing activities 9,024.80 [4,148.57)
Met Increase/[Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [928.28) 418,69

=




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

fi F £ jiFe k ' = L it
{ ;.Jg h (-] . ﬂ
a -i- £jd i i 'i:_ ]

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,573.36 1,144.67

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 645,08 1,573.35

Met Increase/[Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (928.28) 428.69

Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year consist of;

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year [refer note no. 12{a)] 645,08 1.573.36
645.08 1,573.36

The aecompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our repart of even date

For SREBCECDLLP For and on behalf af the Board
Chartered Accountants funiper Hodels Private Limited
ICAL Firm Hegiﬂ'l'ﬂ‘titl ['tll:l..' J24982E/E300003

ST == (Yeuaf

per Aruna Kumaraswamy Peter Fulton Arun Kumar Saraf
Partmer Director iWanaging Director
hdembership Nou: 219350 DIN: 02227963 Dik: 003359772

L
Place: Mumbsai Place: Mumb eep L. Joshi

Dalerﬁ,uj Lt_ﬁ{'_ E’r Lol Diate: August 08, 2022 Company Secretary
/




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

A Equity Share Capital
R ER e ha
- . e =
Az at April 01, znm 14,370.00
Changes in Equity share cagital -
i, I'll!:ln:h 31, 2021 14,370.00
1 » _
14,3700
B. Other Equity
= in Lakhs
- _‘% ¥ 5 ' m’m and El.llw il
s |08 - ﬁ:ulma:qum
| & Ef!- ] - Retai rings 33
Balance as at April 0L, 2020 57,774.74 57, 774.74
: Loss for the year [19,960.08) {19,560.06)
Add: Other Comprehensive income, net of income tax 9.66 566
otal Comprehensive Income for the year [15.950.40) {19, 950.40}
Balance as at March 31, 2021 3782434 37.824.34
Add: Loss for the year {18 815 70) (18,815.70)
Add; Dther Comprehensive income, net of income tax .10
Tatal Comprehensive Income far the year (18, 765 60)
Balance as at March 31, 2002 15,058.74
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
A% per our report of even date
For SR BCRCOLLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants luniper Hotels Private Limived

ICAT Firm Reglstration No.: 324582€ /E300003

R

Membership Mo, 219350

Place: Mumbal
DE'E:HL\TME %, 1C L2-

Pater Fulton Arun Kumar Saraf
Director Managing Director
DiM: 02227963 DiN: 00339772
5.{:;&#
Place: Mu ap L Joshi
Date! August U8, 2022  Company Secretary



JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the Fnancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Corporate Information

Juniper Hotels Private Limited (CIN No.US5101MH1985PTC152863) was incorporated on September 16, 1985, The
Company is engaged in the business of hospitality (Hotels). As at March 31, 2022, the Company has three operating
hotels, nomely 1) Orand Hyatt, Santacruz East, Mumbai, 2) Hyatt Regency, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad and 3) Andaz
Delhi, Aerocity, New Delhi.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 were approved by the Board of Directors and approved for
issue on Aupust 08, 2022,

Significant Accounting Policies

{a)

(b}

(ch

Basis O Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, {Ind AS compliant
Schedule 111}, as applicable to the financial statements,

The financial staternents have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values ai the énd of esch reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

The accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of financial statement have been consistent with
he previous year,

The financiel stetements are presented in INR and all values are rounded o the nearest lakhs, except when
otherwise indicated,

Use of Estimates and Judgemenis

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management 1o make judgements,
estimates and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of asseqs,
lihilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial
statements and the reporied amounts of revenues and expenses for ihe vears presented. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying

accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are
disclosed in Mote 2C.

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer a1 an amount that refects the comnsideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those poods OF services.

Income from Rooms, Food and Beverage:

Revenue is recognized &l the transaction price that is allocated to ihe performance obligation. Revenee includes
room revenue, food and beverage sale which is recognized once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are
sold as per the contract with the customer.




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

{d)

(e)

Lease Rentals:

Lease Rentals comprise rental revenue earned from letting of spaces for retails and offices located within the
propenties and also include income from banguets and events. Lease rentals from operating leases where the
Company is a lessor is recognised on a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable period of the lease contract.

Dther haspitality services:

In relation to laundry income, communication income, health club income, afrport transfers income and ather
allied services, the revenue has been recognized by reference to the time of service rendered.

Dividend and Interest income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive paymeni is established. Interest income is recoghised
using the effective interest method,

Contract Balances

Contract assels

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer, [T the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract assel is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional,

The amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables once the amounts are billed 1o the
customer as per the lerms of the contract.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional {i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in section n Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract Hahilitics

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer poods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfiers goods or services to the custormer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract,

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability fakes place either:

(i) Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes farming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

0

& fair value measurement of 8 non-financial asset takes into aecount o market participant’s ability o generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o another market participant that
would use the asset in s highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use af
undbservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categaorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
wilue measurement as & whaole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observabile.

Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant (o the: fair value measurement
is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period,

Employvee benefiis

{a) Post-employment benefits costs and termination benefits
(i} Defined Contribution Plans

The Company’s contribution o provident fund, employees state insurance scheme and labour welfare
fumd are considered as Defined Contribution Plan and are charged as expense based on the amount of
contribution required 10 be made as and when services are rendered by the employees,

(i) Defined Benefit Plans
The Company’s liabilities towards gratuity are determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuation being carried out at the end of ezch annual reporting period.
Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net
interest), is reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprebensive income in the period in which they occur.
Re-measurement recopnised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained eamings
and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Past service cost is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit lability or asset. Defined benefit
costs are categorised as follows:

» Service cost {including current service cosi, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

» Net interest expense or income; and
»  Hemeasuremernt

The Company presénts the first two components of defined benefit costs in the statement of profit and
loss in the line item “Employee Benefits Expenses™. Cuntailment gains and Josses are accounted for as
past service costs,

2\"-"'




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

The defined benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in
the Company's defined benefit plans.

{b) Short term and other long term employee benefits

Benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages, salaries and compensated absences and which are
expected to be availed within twelve months immediately following the year end are reported 85 expenses
during the year in which the employee performs the service that the benefit covers and the liabilities are
reported at the undiscounted amount of the benefit expected to be paid in exchange of related service. Where
the availment or encashment is otherwise not expected to wholly eccur within the next twelve maonths, the
liability on account of the benefit is acuarially determined using the projected unit credit method at the present
value of the estimated future cash flow expected 1o be made by the Company in respect of services provided
by employees up to the reporting date.

(g) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost bess accumulaed depreciation and impairment losses, if any. All
property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the acquisition cost or the cost of
construction, including duties and non refundable taxes, expenses directly related to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for making them operational for their intended use and, in the case of qualifying
asset, the attributable borrowing costs.

Projects under which the property, plant and equipment is not yet ready for their intended use are carried as capital
work in progress at cost determined as aforesaid,

Subsequent expenditure relating (o property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that fiture
ccanomic bencfits associated with these will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, less its estimated residual value. Depraciation is recognised
50 25 to write off the depreciable amount of assets {other than freehold land and assets under construction) aver
the useful lives using the straight-ling method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Assels Useful life

Building 61 years -]
Plant and Equipment __HZ:I YEArs

Office Equipment 3-5 ycars

Furniture and fixtures 5 years .
Vehicles 3 years

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
items of property, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, Useful lives as estimated by the management reflect fair
apgroximation of the period over which the assets are |ikely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised s derecopnised wpon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
s )

M



JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

{h}

i)

derecognition of the asset (calculated &s the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separatcly are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis,

Estimated useful life of inlangible assets are as follows:
- Computer Software : 5 years

Giaing or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the met
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Foreign Currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated a1 the exchange rate prevailing on the
Balance Sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency are measured at historical cost and translated at exchange
rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

Company as a lessee

The Company applies o single recognition and megsurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recopnises lense liabilities to make lease payments and righi-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

a) Right-of-use assets

The Company recopnises right-of-use assets at the commencememt date of the lease (e, the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilitics. The cost of righe-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurmed, and lease pavments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Ri




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(k)

b}

depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shoner ol the lease 1erm and the estimated useful lives of the assets,
ay finllows:

Leaschold building 60 years

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section P Impairment
of non-financial assets.

Lease liabilities

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilitics measured at the present value
of lease pavmenis to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in
substance fixed paymenis) less any lease incentives receivable, varable lease paymenis that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease paymenis also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain 1o be exercised by the Company and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as espenses (unless
they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
DCCurE.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses 15 incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased (o reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, & change in the lease payments (e.g., changes (o future payments
resulting from a change in anm index or rafe used to determine such leaze pavments) or a change in the

assessment of an oplion 1o purchase the underlving asset, The Company's lease labtlities are included in
[nterest-bearing bormowings.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of office premises
and storage locations (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as o lessor

Lcases in which the Company does not transfer substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases, Renfal income arising is accounted for a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Initial direct costs incurréd in negotiating and armanging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognisced over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earmed.

Imventories

Inventories are valoed af cost or nel realisable value, whichever is lower, cost being determined on weighted
avernge basis. Cost includes all charges for bringing the goods to their present location and condition. Met
realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary (o make the sale.

E.‘L




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

()

Taxes (n Income

Carrent Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected (o be recovered from or paid 1o the
taxation authorities in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the tax
are those that are enacted at the reporting date. Current income fax relating to items recognised owside profit or
Inss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current fax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the
year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the
concerned company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit
is allowed 1o be carried forward. In the vear in which the company recognizes MAT credit as an assel, it is created
by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax gsset. The company reviews
the "MAT credit entitlement” asset al each reporting date and writes down the asset 1o the extent that it is no longer
probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period

Deferred tax

Deferred Tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differénces between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

D ferred Loy asseds are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised.

The carrving amount of deferred tux assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assers and liabilities are measured af the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the year when the asset
i& realised or the lability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income of inequity). Defierred tax items are recognised in correlation o the underlying transaction
cither in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
pesels against current tax habilities,

{m} Provisions And Contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recopnized when there is a present obligation (Jegal or constructive) as a resubt of past event, where
it i5 probable that there will be outflow of resources to setile the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.

The amount recognised as a provision 15 the best cstimate of the consideration required to settle the present

obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. -
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()

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-iax rate Uhal
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is ssed, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Continpencies

Contingent liabilities exist when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will
be confirmed only by the oecurrence or non-occurmence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company, or @ present obligation that arises from past events where it is gither not probable that
an outflow of resources will be reguired or the amount cannot be reliably estimated. Contingent liabilities are
appropriately disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remaote.

Financial Instrumenis

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
s Inifial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are afiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

s Supbsequent measurement

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

s Financial assets af amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business
midel whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractial terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPT) on the
principal smount owstanding. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
secount any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in other ncome in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade receivables, loans
and other financial assets.

s Finaneial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financiul assets and the asset’s contractual cash flow represents SPPL

Financial instruments included within the FVTOCT category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fuir value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (1), However,
the Company recopnizes interest income, dividend income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OC| is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss.

« Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

EVTPL is & residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the criteria for
cateporization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Financial assets included within
the FVTPL cutegory are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

= Equity Instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured st fair value. Equity instruments which are held
for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business cosRS TR

M-
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AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, other than investment in
Subsidiary, the Company makes an irmevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value. The Company makes such e¢lection on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is imevocable,

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OC]
to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or logs within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fiair value with all chanpes recogmised
in the gatement of profit and loss.

Invesiments in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries, are carried at cost in the financial statements,

Derccognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

ar it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flow on the financial assets in a transaction in which
substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transfermed.

Financial liabilitics

Initial recogaition and measorement

Financial liabilines are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial lishilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly anributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their ¢lassification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
ligbilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company thit are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liahilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Guains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of peofit
and loss,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial labdlity is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition urm: nng:na! Imbllll}' and the remgmunn of a new liability. The
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(MTsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the Balance Sheet if there
i o currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and seitle the labilities simultaneously.,

(o} Impairment

{2} Financial asseis

The Company assessed the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried a1 amortised cost and fair
vatlue through other comprehensive income based on the Company’'s past history of recovery, credit worthiness
of the counter party and existing and future market conditions.

For all financial assets other than trade receivables, expected credit losses are measured at an amount egqual to
the 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. For trade receivables, the Company has applied
the simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance as provided in Ind AS 109 which FeguUires
the expected lifetime losses from initial recognition of the receivahles.

{b) Non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, IF
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
assel’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s
(CGL) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
assel, wnkess the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGL excesds its recoverable amount, the asset
is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in usc, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset, In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories are recopnised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determing whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exisis, the
Comparry estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
docs not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reveersal is recognised
in the stalement of profit and loss.

For contract assets, the Company has applied the simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance
as provided in Ind AS 109 which requires the expected lifetime losses from initial recognition of the contract
assels,

{p} Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

-
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()

ir}

{5)

(t)

{u)

Earnings Per Share (Eps)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attribatable 1o equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting
the profit or loss atributable o equity shareholders and the weighted averape number of equity shares outstanding
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

segmeni Reporting

Sepments are identified based on the manner in which the chief operating decision-maker (CODM) decidas about
the resource allocation and reviews performance.

Sepment revenue, scgment expenses, segment assets and sepment labilities have been identified to segments on
the hasis of their relaticnship (o the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue i3 accounted on the basis of ransactions which are primarily determined based on markes
f fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not
allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue / expenses /
assets/liabilities™,

Segment information has been presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements as permitted by Ind AS 108 on
Operating Segments, specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as pan of the cost of the
pasel. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Covernmeni Grants

Government prants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
oft 4 ystematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
Wlhtn the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected usefidl life of the
related asset

When the Compeny receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value
amounts and released to profit or boss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of
the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments.

Cuarrent Versus Noa-Current Classification

The Compony presents assets and liabilities in the halance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset 15 treated as current when it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
# Held primarily for the purpose of rading
* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» (Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Imhmt,\uI for at least twelve
monifs after the reporting period

Rl
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All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

# [t is expected 1o be settled in normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

* [t is due io be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

# There is no unconditional Aght to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred 1ax assets and Labilities are classified as non-current assets and Labilities.

ZA. Recent Accounting Pronouncements Issued But not yet Effective

The Ministry of Corposate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated
March 23, 2022 1o amend the following Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 20232,

i} Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to Ind AS 37

The amendments to Ind AS 37 specify which costs an entity needs 1o include when assessing whether a contract is
onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach™. The costs that relate directly to a
contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs for example direct labour and materials and an
illocation of other costs directly related to contract activities for example an allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulilling that confract. General and administrative costs do nof relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022, The amendments are
not expected to have a matenal impact on the Company,

i} Reference to the Concepiual Framework — Amendments to Ind AS 103

The amendments replaced the reference to the ICAL's “Framewark for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements under Indian Accounting Standards™ with the reference to the “Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard” without significantly changing its requirements.

The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business Combinations 1o avedd
the issue of potential “day 2' gains or losses arising for Habilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the
scope of Ind A5 37 Provisions, Comtingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or Appendix C, Levies, of [nd AS 37, if
incurred separately.

It has also been clarified thar the existing guidance in Ind AS 103 for contingent assets would not be affected by
replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements under Indian
Accounting Standards.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on ar afler | April 2022, The amendments are
not expected to kave a material impact on the Company.

iii) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Inteoded Use — Amendments to Ind AS 16

The amendments modified paragraph 17{e) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced
over the cost of festing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable
costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | April 2[::!2 he amendments are

mof expecied to have a materal impact on the Company,

o
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iv] Ind AS 102 Financial Instruments - Fees in the 10 per cent® test for derecognition of financial liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial lability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022, The amendmenis are
not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

2C Significant Accounting, Judgements Estimates And Assumptions

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, Management is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources, The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered 1o be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future perinds.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following ane the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncenainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment and infangible assets that are subject to depreciation’ amortisation are tested for
impairment perindically including when events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount
of the cash generaling unit is less than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of
value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which
meludes turnover and eamings multiples, prowth rates and net margins used 1o calculate projected future cash flows,
risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market conditions.

Income taxes:

Deferred 1ax assels are recognised 1o the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible temporary differences and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be realized. The Company estimates deferred tax
assets and linhilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business plans, including management's
expectations regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect
the amounl of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets and thereby the tax charge in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Litigations

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate outcome of each being always subject to
many uncerainties inherent in litigation. A provision for litigation Is made when it is considered prohable that a
payment will be made, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgement is made when
evaluating, among other factors, the probability of unfavourable outcome and the ability to mplkp-ss umhle estimate
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of the amount of potential loss. Litigation provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and revisions made for
the changes in facts and circumsiances.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on actuanal
valuation using the projected unit credit method, An actuarial valuation involves making vanous assumpiions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary

increases and mortality rates, All assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and disclosed in the Financial
Statemenls.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company has estimated useful life of each class of assels based on the nature of assets, the estimated usage of the
asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological chanpes, etc. The
Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and mtangible asscts as at the end of each reporting
period, This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortisation expense in future periods.
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Note No. 4 - Leases

The Cormpany has taken land on lease on which Andaz - Delhi Hetel i situated. The lease contract has rengeal rights and there are no

restrletions on sub-leasing.

&) Right-of-use assets -

- [ im Lakhs)
¥ = % Z;ﬁ =T e o assets - |
h 2 Al i 1 Land
: | 114 d
Gross carrying amount
As at April 01, 2020 4543801
Additions
Disposzals
As at March 31, 2021 45,438.01
Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 01, 2020 966.77
Charge for the year 966,77
Dasposals
As at March 31, 2021 1,933.54
Met carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 43,504.47
Gross carrying amount
As at March 31, 2021 45438.01
Additions
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2022 4543801
Accumulated Depreclation
A5 at March 31, 2021 1,833.54
Charge for the year G66.77
Disposals .
As at March 31, 2022 2,500.31
Met carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 43.537.70
B) Lease Liabilitios: (" In Lakhs)
T T
‘1___‘5 . ’ March 31, 2022 | W;L T
Man-Current 36,766,523 35, 266.75
Current 147806 244702
Total 38,244.59 arriaay

M
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€] The movemnent in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 is as I‘nihu.rs.

3 As at
J Marc
Balance at the Beginning 37,713.77 35,142.62
additions
Accretion of interest 290004 285717
Payment of laase labilities 2,449.22 286.02
|Batance at the end 38,244.59 37,713.77
Igwmrent 36,766.53 35,266.75
urrent 1.478.06 244702

o) Anumts recognised rnihe statement of profit and boss:

e TTmE

" As &t
rch 31, 202

.ir: (" in Lakhs)

Depreciation on right-of-use assets 966.77 965.77
Interest expense on lease liabilities 2,580.04 285717
Expense relating to short-term beases -

Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss 3,946.81 3,823.94

E) The matusity analysks of lease Habifties are disclosed in Note 35 (B) "Liquidity Hisk Management’
F] The effective Interest rate for lease abilities is £.45%, with maturity in May 2066,

G) The Company had total cash flows for leases of 2445232 lakhs on March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021 : 286.02 lakhs),

[ s




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

MNotes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote No. 5 - Intangible Assets

(¥ in Lakhs)
$ 1 B M Computer
k e I b s
—
|l. Gross carrying value
A5 at April 01, 2020 1,356.97
Additions 1h0.382
|Cizposals -
A5 at March 31, 2021 1,477.29
fdditions 2512
|Dizposals =
|As at March 31, 2022 1,502.41
0. Accumulated Amortization
at Aprll 01, 2020 1,211.30
ditions 3598

Disposals -
|As at March 31, 2021 1,347.28
Additions 55.71

Disposals =
{As at March 21, 2022 1,402.99
1n.|et carrying amount (1 - 11

As at March 31, 2021 130.01
s at March 31, 2022 00,42




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote No, 6 - Investments [Non-current

LT S &

W= Acat D

March 31,2022 |

I!j 1 T b -

Investment in Subsidiary Company [at cost less impairment, If any)

Fuilly Paid Equity Investrments {Ungquoted)

5,995,998 {Previous Year : 5,999,558 Equity Shares of " 10/- each in Mahima
Holding Frivate Lirnited

Investment in Other Company

(At fair value through Other Comprehensive Income [FYOCH)) [Refer Mote (i)}
Fully Paid Equity Investments (Unguoted)

850,710 {Previous Year : 890,870} Equity Shares of “10/- each in M/s. Sandhya
Hydro Powar Prajects Balargha Private Limited

Investment in government securities (Unguoted) - at cost
Mational Savings Certificate |Refer Note (i)

Aggregate value of unguoted imsestment

(X in Lakhs)

0000

85.07

2.18

BET.25

B00. 00

23,03

2.13

601.27

687.25

B91.27

Notes:

{i} Investrents in these unquoted equity shares are designated as FVTOC as they are not held for trading purpose and are not in
similar line of business as the Company, thus disclosing their fair value change in profit and lass will not reflact the purpose of holding

(i} Thi National Sawvings Certificate has been pledged as security with Maharashtra state excise autherities bo avail ficense,




Mote Mo, 7 - Loans (Non-ourrent}

| Unsa considered pood unless otherwise stated
i AWER AR

Particulars

B 1

.Iiijl

Unsecured Loans, Considered good {at amortized cost)
- to Related Party (Wholly ovwned subsidiary]® G240 57449

Total B2.40 57.49

* Dwring the year an additional interest bearing loan has been granted of ¥ 0.B2 lakhs for meeting its sdmindstrative expenses,
{Previous year - T 45,32 Lakhs for payment of stamp duty on Coneyance Deed),

A) Detalls of loan granted to promoters, directors, KMP and related parties that are repayable on demands are as follows:

[ in Lakhs
B't -4 S " I I.
131,2022 _March 31, 2021
Type of Bormower :mtd;fglnan U6 of total Loans ﬂ:;nr:d?:;mn % of total Loans
{Mahima Holdings 2. 40| 100% 5748 1100 %}
| Total| 62.40 87.48
uired under disclosure section 186 (4] of the Companies Act, 2013.
As at i 18
March 31, 2022 Rate of Interest | Purpose
. il H&M i
Loans given =
Mahima Holding Private Limited Q.82 £2.40 57.49 E¥ Genaral
Corporate

MNote No, 8 - Dther financial assets {non-current) [at amortized cost)

cured, considered good unloss otherwise stated
i — e S
1 r; g I . _:ﬂ ]
Ll : T
Fixed Deposits with Banks having maturity of maore than 12 months * 1,087.61 0157
Security deposlts 399.36 36824
Total 148697 769.81

* Includes deposits of 108761 (March 31, 2021 " 384.59) placed as security against borrowings,

o




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote Mo, 9 - Other noa-current assets

: B e ‘?
f ] % in Lakhs}
a) Capital Advances
= Sepured, considered good - 24.02
= Unsecured, considered good 107.17 1,325.41
b} Others {Unsecured, considered good)
- Prepayments 8,74 10,34
- Balances with governiment avthorithes 46,05 45,55
= Security Deposits 154,24 179.29
Total 38620 1.584.61
Mote No. 10 - Inventories

-ogt and net reallmmble value

i

Food and soft Beverages

Wines and Liquor

Stores and Spares

Operating Supplies {Refer Note 1 below)

Motes:
1) Rafer Mote No. 17 and Mote No, 22 for details of inventaries pledged as sacurity for loan taken from banks,

2) During the year anded March 31, 2022 ° NIL (March 31, 2021 ° NIL) was recognised as an expense for inventories carried at net
realisable value.




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote No. 11 - Trade receivables (At amortized cost
 rli ; ! ' e & "!.4“ —%EE"..'I'H
: 41 i i 2027 __March 31, 7021
i = E i m}
Trade Recefvables considered pood - Secured 245,44 16788
Trade Recotvables considered good - Unsacured 2.712.65 2020883
Trade Receivables - credit impaired 44711 525.38
. 340624 2.5918.0%
|Less: impairment Alowances [a47.11) 1525.38]
Total 2,958.13 239271
Hotas:

1) Refer Maote Mo, 17 and Mote Mo. 22 for detalls of receivables pledged as security for loan 1aken from banks

2] Trade recetvable balances have increase on account of increase in operations in March, 2022 compared to operations in March,
2021 perlod.

3) Trade receivable are non interest bearing and generally on terms of 15 days to 30 days.

4) The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment losses on trade
receivables. The Company follows the simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance on trade receivables , The
application of the simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal] recognised during the periad is

recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount % reflected under the head Tother expenses’ in the Statement of Profit
and Loss,

51 Movement in Impairment allowance on Trade Recoivabie

i
i E

‘ -
. | March 21, 2021
426,96
12 65

6577
525.38

Wllowances [ (write back) during the year
tten off against past prowision
Balance at the end of the year

&) No Trade or other dues are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any ather person.

Naor any trade or other receivable due from firms or private companies respactively in which any divector is a partmer, a directar ar a
miambier,

7] Trade receivables ageing




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the Financial S$tatements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Az at 31st March, 2022 {’ in Lakhs)
- e pEr #l e mm lnﬂﬁ'pﬁ‘[ﬁﬁnﬁn dane of payment
NotDue | Lessthan 6] 6 months - More than :
i ! | 1
/| | i s |g rs o, Total
(. | months | ayesr | HENST ) BBV | 3 years
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered pood 1.819.17 TEGED 17045 7934 8438 16.08 | 2.959.12
[ili} Undisputed Trade Receivables - crodit
Amgaired - 51.69 15.30 1341 66.68 240.03 44711
Totsl 1819.17| 841.38 185.75 | 152.75 151.06 25612 | 3.406.23
As at 31st March, 2021 {" in Lakhs)
TR S _
| & ‘Mot Due |
i} Undisputed Trade recalvables -
considered good B9.34 45894 432,96 310.59 B 245] 239N
fiii] Undisputed Trade Recetvablas = credit
EElail'E'-d ' A3 15.14 174.40 24,51 23420 525,38
Total BOS,34 53551 445,10 434,495 403.50 236650 | 291808




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote Mo, 12 - Cash and cash equivalents and other balances with bank
aj Cash and cash equivalents

a."l!.::F
=

lars =
1

- Cash on hand 34.30 2050
- Cheques/drafts on hand . oz
- Balances with bank
- In eurrent aceounts 610.78 155274
Total 45,08 1,573.36
b} Gither halan%wlth Banks
. | As L T
culars | i rch 3 March 31, 2021
il 1 e In Lakhs) {% in Lakhs)
In term deposit accounts * 240,00 -
Deposits with original maturity more than three months bul ks than twelve months 4.00 -
Margin money deposits 649,75
Tortal Ba2.00 649.75

Note:
1) * Indludes deposits for meeting loan covenants,

2] As at March 31, 2022 the Company had available ™ 902.78 Lakhs (March 31, 2021 * 976.62 Lakhs) of undrawn committed borrowing

faciliies.

3) The changes in liabilities arising fram financing activities Is on aceount of cash flow changes only,




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

MNote Mo. 13 - Other financial assets (current){at amortized cost)
Unsecured consid o , unless otherwise stated)

Interest accrued but not duse on fixed deposits
Export Incentive Recaivable

Security deposits

Others

Total

Asat
harch 31, 2021
(% in L

046 7253

763,35 -
150,08 150.00
- 43,65
513.85 216,18

Note No. 14 - Other current assats

a) Advances to Suppliers
Secured, considered good
- Unsecured, considered doubtful
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances

b} Others {Unsecured, considered good)
- Balances with gavernment authorities
- Prepayments
« Unkilled revenue
- Qther Recetvables

Total

[ in Lakhs) [inLokie)
31389 128,93

5180 21.80
{51 80) {51.80)

313.85 128,93

035.05 919.47

L003.48 309,66

179.66 8.77

59.78 39.05

243486 1,405.88

I




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Nete No. 15 - Equity Share Capital

a) Detalls of the Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Pald-up Share Capital:

"'7'.5.""-3 1 As at
o= 2027 | March 31, 2021
| [%in Lakhs)
190,000,000 Equity Shares of the par value of T 10 each 12.000.00 19,000.00
March 31, 2021; 190 000 Equity Shares of T 10 each]
19,000.00 13,000.00
issued, Subscribed and Fully Pald-up
143,700,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 14,370.00 14,370000
March 31, 2021; 143,700,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each)
14,370.00 15,370.00

b) Reconcifiation of the number of shares and amount putstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

! E at
B Mard - March 31, 2021
! =i No.of Sharey Mo. of Shares {¥ in Lakhs] |
At the beginning of the year 143700 14,270.00 14,37,00,000 14,370.00
dd : Issued during the year = = . =
Dutstanding at the end of the year 14,37,00,000 14,370.00 14,37,00,0600 14,370.00
c] Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Equity
Iﬁ T # x . I
Name of Sharchold s 1
e e 1 — jolding % | Mo. of shares
Saraf Hotels Limited, Mauritius : ¥,18,50,000
Two Seas Holdings Limited, Mauritius 50. % 7,18,50,000

Total 100.00%| _14,37,00,000

d) Terms  Rights attached to Equity Shares:
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Direclors is subject to the approval of the sharebolders at the ensulng Annual General

Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining
assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

o) Details nfﬂw-:: held miobers:
7 . March 31, 2022 E e ==y

m ame : . of share at e [No.ofshare (%o EE

Dwtwm ‘“ er/ pre the beginning of |during theend of |shares  |change
up* - ] d
P i!__ year '| year j L I-II'hI],ﬁ_::I'II
Il':IEILrﬂ:'lI .mum ol " 10 ach fully paid Saraf Hotels Limited, ¥.18,50,000 .
Mauritius

7,18, 50,000 -

.

Euul':a.r shares of * 10 each lulv paid Saraf Hotels Limited, 7.18,50,000 718,550,000 S0.00%
Mauritius
|Tma 7.18,50,000 - T1850000 | 5S0.00% -
Mote No. 16 - Other Eguity
F 4 TTEE TR
Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
i [Tin Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Retained Eamings
As per last Balance Sheet ATB24.34 &1,774.74
Add: Loss Tor the year {18.815.704 {12,960.086)
Add: Other comprehensive income (et of tax) 2010 9 .6R
Bakamce as at the end of the year 19,058.74 3782434
Total 19,058.74 37,8243

Mature and Purpose of reserves:
Retalned Earnings

Retained Earnings are the profit that the Company has earned till date less any transfer to reserve, dividends or sther distributions paid
to share holders. Retained earnings includes remeasurement bost / {gain) on defined benefit plan net of taxes that will not be reclassified

to statement of profit and koss.




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note No. 17 - Borrowings (Non-current)

Rt ot R
ulars 8L March 31, 2022 _
T T, T Current | Mon-current
Secured Loans
- Aupes Term Loans from Banks 242945 3B8,325.74 2,144 I0,630.58
Unsecured Loans
- Non-Convertible Debentures 41,600.00 =
- Ruper Term Loans from Banks 1,03,120.57 1.10,237.34
- Exbirnal Commercial Borrowings ['ECB') 22,652.98 21,970.81
= Term Loan from Others - 16 1402517
Tatal 2,05,699, 70 1I?E.ﬁl§ﬂ
Motes:

a) Term Loans of T 2,429.45 Lakhs, (Previous vear T 2,160.38 Lakhs) payable in next twelve months are shown under note na. 22.

b) Rupee Term Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited {Secured)
i, First hypothecation charge on all existing and future receivables of Grand Hyatt Mumbai Hotel.

i First charge on all existing and future Inventories and receivables (except lease rental recaivables) of Grand Hyatt Murmbai, Hotel,

iii. First pari passu charge on title deeds of freehold land admeasuring 33,816.63 sgm or there about situated at village Kole Ealyan,
Vakola, Mumbai, together with all buildings and structures constructed or erected or attached thersan and all the plant and machinery
both present and future installed / to be installed thernin, The title deeds are deposited with IDB| Trusteeship Services Limited, acting
an behalf of lender with their consent.

Rupee Term Loan from Kotak Bank [Secured] is repayable in 12 years by way of structured quarterly repayment of principal starting
from the end of first month from first date of disbursement.

iv. First pari passu charge on all present and future movable fiked assets of Grand Hyatt Mumbal.

¢} Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line from Kotak Bank {Secured) under ECLGS Schete:
Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line from Kotak Bank (Secured) under ECLGS Scheme is repayable in 48 equated monthly instalments of
" 237.15 Lakhs and 48th instalment of * 235.94 lakhs. The tenar of loan is 72 months {including the 24 month moratorium period),

d) Rupee Term Loan from JP Morgan Chase Bank {Unsecured):

Rupee term Ioan from IP Morgan Chase Bank {Unsecured) is repayable in single bullet payment of T 82,651 Lakhs on May 10, 2024,
The loan is backed by guarantee of Hyatt Hotels Corporation,

&) Rupes Term Loan from JP borgan Chase

Bank [Unsecurad]:

Rupee term loan from IP Morgan Chase Bank (Unsecured) is repayable in single bullet payment of T 21,599 Lakhs on April 14 , 2024
The loan is backed by guarantee of Hyatt Hotels Corporation.

N~




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

f} ECB From Promoters (Unsecured):

The ECE [Unsecured) taken from Promoters are subordinated to boans from banks and are due for repayment on December 07, 2023,
september 30, 2023, March 31, 2023, January 14, 2024, January 31, 2024, October 13,2023, September 20, 2023 and February 10,
2026

Ininstalments of ° 2854.07 lakhs [USD 3.25 million], * 2,454.07 lakhs {USD 3,25 million}, ~4,%08.12 lakh (USD 6.50 million), * 2,642 85
lakhs (USD 3.5 millipn), * 2,642.85 lakhs (USD 3.5 million}, ™ 1,963.26 {USD 2.6 million}, * 445509 Lakhs {USD 5.90 million), * 1,132.65
{USD 1.5 million] respactively. Also refer note 32 - "Related Party transactions”.

)] Non-Corwertible Debentures:
The Unsecured Noa-convertible debenture taken from Others amounting to T 41,600 Lakhs is due for repayment on May 10, 2024 in
single bullet payment. The loan is backed by guarantee of Two Seas Holdings Limited.

) vehide Loan from Kotak Prime Limited:

The Vehicle Loan from Kotak Prime Limited amounting to ' 13 Lakhs was taken against hypothecation of the vehicle and is rapayable in
36 equal instalments of * 0Ll Lakhs, First instalment was due in March 01, 2019 and the last instalment will be due in February 01,
2022,

i) Vehide Loan fram Skoda Financial Services;
The Vehide Loan from Skoda Financial Services amounting to ' 36 Lakhs is taken against hypothecation of the vehicle and s repayabie

in 35 equal instalment of * 1.15 Lakhs, First instalment was due in March 10, 2020 and the last instalment will be due In February 10,
2023, The Loan is repald.

il Wehicle Loan from HOFC Bank Ltd

The Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank Ltd amounting to ° £7 Lakhs is taken against hypothecation of the vehicle and is repayable in 36
equal Instalment of * 2.74 Lakhs. First instalment was due on October 07, 2021 and the last instalmant will be due in September 07,
2024,

k) Changes in liabilities arlsing fraom financing activities:

oot :a - i
Particulars J’ . h:rlm, 2021 l'l-n:wugs
4 i (¥ in Lakhs)
Current borrowings 6,184.00 298.00
Leaze liakilities AT713.77 (2,949.22) 2.980.03 3E,244.58
1,76,864.00 28,153.00 682.17 - 2,05,699.17
220,761,777 26,001.78 682.17 2588003 2,50.425. 15

|

e
i L

. {Tin Lakhs)
Current borrowlngs 4623.26 618375
Lease liabilities 35,142.61 3T713.77
Mon- current

: A - :

it 1,65 203 .64 11,708.73 43.47) 1,76,E63.90
Total Habilities from
financing activities T, 12,584.20 ; 2,807.70 2,20,761.42

-




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote Mo, 18 - Other financial liabilities (non-current)

i Lki « i aw
ﬁku ~ March 31, 2021
t (¥ in Lakhs)
Security Deposit 30112 B37.51
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3.712.713 3.207.20
{lmterest on ECB loan]
Total 4,013.85 3.844.71

Mote Mo, 19 - Provisions [Mon-Current]

Provision for employes benefits
- Gratuity [see note 25 {a]] £42.29 B1D.76
- Compensated absences 166.74 184.73
Total 709.03 79543 |
|
Mote No. 20 - Deferred tay
The following is the analysks of deferred tax (assets] / llabilities presentied in the balance sheet:
.'_:. - : T | ----- G 5§ a = _. hﬂl '1"=i= A.:“ ’
Firguulm ; 5 | h31, 2022 | March31 2021 |
i il In Lakhs) L. [T in Lakhs)
Deferred tax labilities 23,200,770 23,076.75
Deferrid tan assets 31.251.34) 11:1,1&1.9&“
Net {7 950.64)

ls,m.uil

A) Reconcliation of deferred tax asset f [liabilities) (net):

Crpening Balance
Tax income/{expensa) during the period recognised in profit or loss
ax income/f{expense} during the period recognised in OCI

Olasing Balance

5,388.21 [1,004.33)

2,580.34 6,487.73
{26,591} 5.19

7,950.54 5 388.21 '




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

MNotes forming part of the Financial 5tatements for the year ended March 31, 2022

B) The balances comprises temporary difference:

31, 022

Deferred tax [aseets) / liabilities in relation to the ended March
- B - o | -. Fﬂ
rticulars ! :ﬁl{ E ance
| Property, plant & equipment and Intangibles 23.076.75 223.95
Totsl deferred tax labilities 1 076.75 233,55
|Provision for employvee benefits 516.75 4495 126.591)| 53879
Allowance for doubtful debts 201.59 (27.35)| . 174,34
MAT Credit recehvable 524,87 - - 52487
Right-of-use assets f Lease Liabidlities 1,550,549 801.34 - 2.351.93
Unabsorbed Depreclation 23.193.01 4,096.26 - 2728927
Dthers 2.478.05 12,105.591§| . 372.14
Total deferred tax assets 28,454 .96 2 E13.29 {26.91) 31,251.34
Deferred tax (assets) / llabllity (net) {5,388.21) {2.589.34)1 26.91 {7,950,64))
hovemant of Deferred Tax
Deferred tax {assets) [ labilities in relation to the year ended March 31, 2021 (T in Lakhs)
Opening Balance | Statement of Hempjﬂ%jn ocl
E e s = T
|Property, plant & equipment and Intangibles 1247117 605.58 - 23,076.75
| Total deferred tax liabilities 23 471,17 B05.58 = 23,076,75
Provvision for emplovee bensfits 489.67 3237 {5.19] 516.75
Allowance for doubtful debts 177940 23,79 - 20469
MAT Credit recehable 52487 - 57487
Right-of-usa assets f Lease Liabilities Th6.63 7E3.06 1,550.59
Unebsorbed Depreciation 18,680.07 4,512.949 13,193.01
Unzbsorbad Business Loss 370,73 {370.73) -
Others 366,97 2,111.08 - 2478.05
Total deferred taw assets 21,376.84 5.19 28,464.96
Deferred tay (agsets) f Bability (net] 109433 213 (5388.21))




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote No. 21 - Other non-current liabilities

2
M & i R N T
— — S 47 e
Deferred Government Grants 7235 1,121 84
Deferred Loase Incame 20.24 47.52
Total 92.59 1,169.36

Note No. 22 - Borrowings (Current) [At amortized cost)

w2 4 A I i L ‘# ?
Secured
= Cash credit [refer note no. | below) 597.21 52337
- Bank overdraft (refer note no_ i below) 3,458.95 3,500.00
= Current maturities of long-term borrowings {Refer note no, 17) 242945 2,160.38
Total 6,481.61 5,183.75
Motes:

i) Cash credit ks securad by first pari passu charge on book debits, first charge on other current assets and secand charge on moveable
and immoveable fised assets at Grand Hyatt Mumbal property,

W) Bank Overdraft is secured by first Charge on all present and future moveable fixed assets, inventories and receivables of Grand
Hyatt Mumbai property.

P




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Naote No. 23 - Trade Payables
_ =1 G G R ) s at
h:*-: rs ™ . T - ]an ggﬂ!l,:u:l .J; Mmh
i = nE | - ] ri - 3 ]l {!‘ In_i. -i IIIIII.I.E;
- Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 566,46 546,95
- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micre and small gnterprises 6,141 B3 12,844.22
Tatal 5.708.28 13,391.20

1) Trade payables are mon interest bearing and are normally settied on 30 days to 120 days credit term.

2) Disclpsura reqmreﬂ um:ler mtlnn 22 of Migra

sSmall and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

i {18 : at As _H':'..-
| || March 31,2022 |  March31, 2021
= e~ I {Tin uﬂmgﬁ ! (% in Lakhs)
{i) Principal amount remaining unpald to any supplier a5 at the end of the accounting 52027 518.723
{ii] Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 46,19 2875
Accounting year,
(i} The amount of interest paid afong with the amounts of the payment made to the -
suppler beyond the appointed day.
{iw] The amount of interest due and payable for the yoar, 17.44 17.60
{v] The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting 46,19 ZB.75
YEar.
{vi} The amount of further interest due and pavable even in the succeeding year, until =
such date whan the interest dues as above are actuaslly paid, I
3) Trade payable apeing
As at Blst March, 2022 {" in Lakhs)
&Eﬁ . % uuuanr fnilnunn:p.rlndl from ¢ y of payment
+" ! b 2 " 'Not Due than 1 [ 5 i thana|
a1 - r . %ﬁ.ﬂ ! years i hd
(i) MSME - 55333 11.47 1.66 266,46
{il} Crthars 1,618 28 Z.832.42 193.77 290,50 20685 6,141 82
Total 1,618.28 4,385.75 20524 292.16 206,85 G, 70828
Ag at 31st March, 20X1 (" in Lakha)
| g i T Cutstan tor followsing periods fr'n‘l%“ntn of payment
l:'?.rt i 8 t : s "-_but LE’::::“ tﬂl'!l'llr! iy 7"""!’5 1 ;.:::I:" 3 lﬂtl_h : 3 '
{i) MSME - 379.14 94.85 | 2598 47.02 546,97
{1} Qthars 577.96 7.336.26 3,240.21 1. 49716 1932 64 12,844 23
Total 577.00 7.715 40 3.335.06 | 152812 239.66 13,391 20




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

MNote Mo, 24 - Dther financial liakilities (current){at amortized cost)

Interest accrued but not due
Book overdraft

Creditors for capital expenditure
Security Deposit

Total

” As at Asat
Ma 20xz | mms;,'ﬂ
{t e {Tintakhs) |
692,50 274.45
52.86 332.16
1,433.98 1,334.34
2,341.28 1,951.43
4,520.62 3,892_38

Mote Mo, 25 - Provisions [Current)

T ] T
i— M" | march3i, 2021
-2 ik {Tin I.akhst
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratulty {refer note below) 7B5.52 BE0.46
- Compensated ahsences 4733 22.85
Total B3r.84 BE3.31




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note No. 25 - Employee Benefits:
{1} Defined benefit plans:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan which Is unfunded. Every employee who has compéeted 5 years or more of service
Bt a gratuity at 15 days salary {last drawn satary) for each completed year of service,

The following table below summaries the components of et benefit expenses recognised in statement of profit or loss, other
comprehensive Income, the funded status and amount recognised in the balance shest for the respective plans as on the reparting
dates:

" t Tﬁ !"f < T

Current Service Cost 139.14
InEerest oot 81.94
Enpensas recognized in the Statemeant of Prafit and Loss 221.08 210,22
i g Ty
Ma
rtcmrlal {gains) / losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (6 1-1E|| {1077
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from experlence adjustments {20.70) (4.08)
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from Demographic Assumption 4.84 -
Incorne recognized in Other Comprehensive Income | 77.02) 114.85)
¢} Changes in Benefit Obligation
Liakility at the beginning of the year 1,271.22 1,137.81
Current Service cost 139.14 145.75
intersst cost B194 J4.47
|&enefit Pald [T 48] i?l.‘.ﬂil‘
Actuarial {Gains)fLosses on abligation {77.02 (14.85)
|Liakisty at the end of the year 1,327.80 1,271.22 |

P




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mortality rate

Discount Rate
Expected Rate of Salary Increase
- Corparate Office
= Qperations
- Grand Hyatt Mumbal
- Hyatt Regency Ahmedabad
- Hyatt Andaz, Delhi
Withdrawal rates:
- Corporate Office
- Dperations
- Grand Hyatt Mumbai

- Hyatt Regency Ahmedabad

- Hyatt Andaz, Delhd

100%: of |ALM
2012-14
6.00%

E.O0%
3.00% - 5.0
3.00% - 5.00%
100
2.00r%

A0% for upto age 39
and 10% thereafter

30% for upto age 39
and 10% thereafter

18%. for upto age 39
and 5% thereafter

% As at _ﬁti As at
arch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

100% of 1ALM

2012-14
&.45%

6.00%)
3.00% - 7.00%)
7.00%
7.00%]

2.00%

18% for upto age 19
and 5% theraafier

18% for upto age 33
and 5% therealter

1B% for upto age 39
and 5% therealter

e} Sensltivity Analysis:

I E
culars ! | Y

Projected benefit obligations on current assumplions
+1% increase in discount rate

132781

1,271,223

(49 50) 164.349])

-1% decrease |n discount rate 55.48 73.90
-1% decrease in salary [50.18) (64 95)
+1% increase i rate of employes turnover 16.92) {19.98)
-1% decrease in rate of employes turnower 434 26.24
{f] The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined beneflt obligation is as follows:
T I L

: g * i 3!, 1 March 31,,. m_‘
Upta 1 year TBS.50 BR0.46
Betweshn 2 16 5 yéars 250.78 #06.62
Betwaeen b to 10 years 27939 14868
Beyond 10 vears 437.38 BT1.BH

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period Is 3 years {31 March 2021: 5 years).




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Rlsk Anaiysis:

The Company 5 exposed 1o the following Risks in the defined benefits plans ;

Interest risk; A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan Bability; however, this will be partially offse by increase in the
returm on the ptan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan Rability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the martality of
plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan particdpants will Increase the
plan’s liability.

Salary grawth risk: The present value of the defined banefit plan liability i calculated by reference to the future sataries of plan
particlpants. Anincrease in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liab#lity.

(1} Defined Contribution Plan:
Amount recognized a5 an expense and included in Note No. 30— Contribution to Provident and other Funds: * 385,86 Lakhs {Previows
year  ZB7.57 Lakhs). Expected rate of return.

-




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Nabe No. 26 - Other current |iakilities

g I | -" . i = :m - M# As at ..
tﬂ!! § '! = g | i March !-I'iﬂ'ﬂ !

s i 1 (¥ in Lakhs) )
Advances from customers 142845 143575
Contract Liabilities 2241 2983
Deferred Lease ncome 57,73 R2.26
Deferred Government Grants 1,045.49 3,155.23
Statutory Dues 1,063.67 1485.60

Total 3.627.75 6, 1E9.65

Mote Na, 27 - Revenue fram aperations

lra

Fa WFF

i

Tl
o | o
Zintakhe) | (¥in Lakhs)

[Revenue from contracts with customers:
Room

Food and soft beverages

‘Wines and liguor

Liase rentals

Other hospitality servicas

llﬂlh!rﬂmath; Revenues
Export Incentives Income

Tatal

16,998.53 g9,830.51
7,800.21 3,615.88
1,149.95 46563
2,405,127 2,005.41
1,751.68 717.67

30,105.49 16,635.10

763.39
763.39
30,868.88 16,635.10




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote Mo. 2B - Other income

- [ g :_! =
' .:!_.l if Hﬂﬂi&ﬂﬂuvﬁmﬂd
dars il | march 31, 2021
-!ﬁg 'r- |'h-. IEEEE
Interesl Income:
= 0n financial instruments measered al amortized cost 120.13 8577
= On Income Tax Refund 35,93 319.23
Gain on dispossl of Property, plant and equipment {net) 2145 025
Governmienl Grants Income 3,155.25 1,042.62
Galn on foreign exchange fluctuation {net) . 460,56
Unclaimed eredit balance written back 15261 BEG. 42
Misceflansous moame 25.79 37.30
Tatal 3,511.16 2,651.15
Mote Ma. 29 - Food and beverages consumed
2 mfn— Asat
i 31 W 131, 2021
¥ ﬂ'l‘n La b Lakhs)
73.54 123,72
2.416.60 1,245.89
Less: Closing Stock 9544 73.54 |
239470 1,296.07
Wines and Liquor
Openkng Stock 441,98 £28.73
Add: Purdhases 33236 IBEE
Less: Closing Stock 462,98 441.98
311.38 136,71
Total 2,706.06 1,432.78




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote No. 30 - Employes banefits expanse

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expenses

Staff welfare expenses

MNote Mo. 31 - Finance costs

] ‘! | £ [ ¥ :‘. A 5‘: Mm'ﬁ
ul 1 ' March 31, 2023 % ieh 31, 2021
; i o =0 {TinlLakhs) Lakhs)
Interest Expense
= On borrowings from banks & othars 13,467 .84 13.784.41
- On lease Babilities 298004 2 B57.17
- On Others 223.74 95.45
Diher borrowing costs 4,108 B0 188027
Met Loss on foreign cufrency transactions [ translations FHZ3S -
Total 21,562.85 18,621.30
Mote No. 32 - Depreciation and amortization expense
] Ag at :
March 3 2 | March 21
(i Lakh La
Depreciation on Tangible fssets 897137 9,536 64
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets OR6. 77 86677
Amortization of Intangible Assets 55.71 35.98
Total 9,993.85 10,539.59




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Maotes farming part of the Financtal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote No. 33 - Other expenses

i | m | Forthe year en
= - Elli . March 31, 2022
i | ' ~ (% in Lakhs)
Operating supplies consumed 1,180.40 83731
Other direct operating eost 2,295.12 1.421.04
Power and fuel 2,8500.66 2115586
Water Charges 3ar7.an IST.AR !
Repairs and Maintenance - Building 303.31 153.45 ¢
Repair: and Maintenance - Others 1,683.35 BE4.74 4
Retpairs @nd Maintenance - Plant and Madhinery 606,20 23274
Insurance 242.20 192,15 !
Rates and tawes 1,0071.55 152861
Communication expense 5370 53.73
Travelling and Conveyance 200,62 H 1 A
Printing and Stathomnerny 58.88 5AY9
Business promotion expenses 471,89 244.74
Payments to auditors (Refer Mote (i} below) 34,50 4283
Donations .50 1.00
Legal and Protessional Expenses 43209 205G ¢
Comméssion and brokerage a70.1a LD §
Management Fees 1,348.70 e
Loss on loreign exchange fluctuation [net) 24.37 - '
Bad and doubtful debts / advances [Refer Mote {il) below) 4098 164.13 I
Miscellaneous expenses #5.95 45,63
Total 13,958.0% 9.823.09
]
1
Note: l
{1) Payrnents to auditors include:
[a) fs audibors 33,00 100
(b) For Dther Sendces 1.50 4634
[c] For reimbursement of expenses 5 1.20 §
Total 34.50 TR
{1} Bad and doubtful debts / advances: ’
(a} Expected credit loss for trade recefvables 830 3265
(b} Allowances for doubtful debts and advances 12 68 131.54
Total 40,98 1645.19




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

MNote No. 34 - Intome tax

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2023 and

March 31, 2021 :
F RE e gl For the year ended | For the year ended
{ N3  Particulars 7 - i March 31, 2022 I March 31, 2021
ikl _cuile e [ (Eintakns) [Tin Lakhs)
Loss before tax {21 40504} 125,9;9.34!'
Indian statutory income tax rate 34.944% 34.944%
Income-tax expense at India's statutory income tax rate {7 479.7E) 19.413.69)
Effect of adjustrnents to reconcile the expected tax expense to reported incomé ta
eapense:
Effect of unused tax losses 709127 3.570.48
Effect of non-deductible expenses (1,461,700 (1,136.07)
Effect due to Fair valuation on Land (739.13) -
Total income tax expense recognized in the current year relating to continuing operations (2,589.34) (6,979.28)

The tax rate used for Current year and previous year recondiliations above i4 the corporate tax rate of 34.544% payable on taxable profits by
corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the indian tax law.

OTA not recognised on unused tax losses amounting * 14,691.57 lakhs (March 31, 2022 ° 7,031.27). The details of expiry of unusad tax losses

is detailed below:

Nature of unreognised Gregter than one
Year ended G Within 1 year year, beas then eight Mo expiry date Tatal
Years
March 31, 2022 Business Loss - 14,691.47 - 14,6591 47
March 31, 2021 Business Loss - 7,091.27 7.091.27

e




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note No. 35 - Financial Risk Management & Capital Management:

35.1 - Financial Risk Management

The Company's financial kabillties Include borrowings, lease liabilities, vade and other payables. The Company's financial assets
include investments, loans, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances. The Campany also hobds
FYOC! investments. The Company ks exposed 10 market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directoss of the Company
oved sk the management of these financial risks,

Financial risk factors
The Company's activities expose it 1o a varlety of financial risks: market risk, Bquidity risk and credit risk.

A, Market risk
Market risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in marke
prices. Barket risk comprises two types of risk: currency risk and interest rate risk

lgn Cur Risk
Forelgn currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes In foreign
exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates to the Company’s operaling and
financial activities,

{a) As at the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the material foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are as follows:

: e ch31,2021
: i b
. Curgcy [ in Lakhs) 1 [@inpakhs)
Wl o3 :
5D 005 BEZ B0 41.02 3,003,832
AED 0.01 0,35 .01 0.2%
EURD 0.54 4541 054 4647
External Cormmercial usD 349.17 25,365 71 343 87 25.178.01
Borrowings
(b} Foreign curiency sendilivity:

The following tables demonstrate the sensilivity of outstanding forelgn currency denominated monetary items to 8 reasonably
possibie change in exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company's profit before tax i due 1
changes in the fair value are as follows:

March 31, 2022 |

i {#in Lakhs} _
USD +1% {270.49) 1231.Ez;|r
USD -1% 270,49 281,82
[AED +1%: -
AED -1% : :
EURD +1% (0.45) [0.48)
EURD -1% 0.45 0.46




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

if} Interest rate risk

{a} Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Mows of a financlal Instrument will Ructuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Tha Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interast rates relates primarily 1o the Company's long-
term debt obligation with floating interest rates. The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a portfolio of fixed and variable
rate hnrmwlﬂ_iﬂ- The following table provides a breakup of the Company's fixed and floating rate borrowings.

Pa 1I1ﬂ: £ March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

i " ¥in I.ii;l'm]d._ {¥In Lakhs) |
Fized rate borrowings 502 23
Floating rate borrowings 211,679 183, 0ud
Tatal 212,181 1,683,048

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rate for term loan and debenture that have

ficating rate at the end of the reporting period and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the reporting period.

- If the interest rate had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all the ather variables are held constant, the Company’s profit for
the year ended hMarch 31, 2022 would decrease/increase by ~ 1,058.40 Lakhs {(March 31, 2021 ° 915.10 Lakhs).




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Hote No. 35 - Financlal Risk Management & Capital Managemant: [Contd...)

B Lhquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company £annot meets its financial obligations,
maintain sufficient Bquidity and ensure that the funds are available for use as per the

The objective of liquidity risk management is to
equirements, The Company manages liquidity

risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and roserve borrawing facllities, by continuoushy monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of finandal assets and liabilities. The Company congistently penerates

sufficient cash flows from operations to meet its Anancial obligations as and when they fall due.

Financing arrangements:

The table below ides details regarding the contractual maturities of non-derkative financal liakilities as of March 31, 2022-
ﬁmzﬂi IE # Lessthan 1year | . 1.5 years | After m . ﬂ Tk
qammwmgs » 6,481 61 1.92,705.15 14 683,83 2,13,870.59
Lease liahdites * 1478.06 6,781.21 24867140 2,56,930.67
Trade payables 6, 0524 - - 6, 708,28
|Dther financial Babilitios 4, 520,62 4,013.85 - 8,534.47
Total 19,188.57 2,03,500.21 2,63,355.23 486,044 01

The table below prewides detalls r

rding the contractual maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities a5 of March 31, 2021:

_ i: & E : : Less than 1 year 1-5 years After 5 o Total
Borrowings * 6,183.75 1,64,279.74 12,833.53 1.83,247.02
Leasa liahifitias * 244702 643769 2,50,505.19 2.50,379 .60
Trade payables 13,391.20 - = 13,391.20
Cither Timamcial lisbilities 3,852.38 3.844.71 1713708

[Total 25,914.35 1,74,502.14 2,63.338.72 4,63,755.21

® Contractual undiscounted cash flows

C. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that customer or the counter party will nat meet its obli
foss, The Company s #xposed to credit sk from ivestrments, trade recsivab

gation under a financial instrument leading to a financial
les, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balance, loans

and ather financlal assets. The Company's credit risk Is minimized as the Company’s financial assets are carefully allocated ta counter

parties reflecting the eredit worthiness. Credit risk on trade recetvables are subject to the Company's est
and contrel relating to customer credit risk management,

ablished pokicy, procedurss
Credit guality of a customer is assessed and individual credit limits are

defined in accordance with this assessment. Further, Company's trade recetvables are spread over a number af customers with nog

signiflcant cencentration of credit risk. Mo single customes, accounted for 10% ar

prasented.

Credit Risk on Cash and Cash Equivalent and other bank balances are Bmited a4 the coun

ratings assignad by the credit rating agencies,

Investment and Loan are primarily comprises of Invesiment made and loan Ehen 1o Subsidiary Compainy.

Other financial assets primarily comprises of amount recaverahle towards exparl incentive from Gowvernment authaorities.

more of the trade receivable in any of the year

ter parties are Banks with higher eredit

The carrying value of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum credit exposure an financal
Buarantees given by the Company for various financial fadilities is disclosad in Mobe 40 "Contingent Liabilities and Commitrments,*

P




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

35.2 - Capital Maonagemint
For the purpase of managing capital, Capital Includes issued equity share capital and reserves attributable 1o the equity holders.
The objective of the Company's capital management are 1o

- Safeguard their ability to continue as going concern so that they can continue to provide benefits to their shareholders.

- Maximize the value of the shareholder,

= Maintain optimum capital structure to reduce the cost of the capital,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and reguirement of
financial covenants. In order to malntain orf adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment 1o
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares / infuse funds as required for the operations of the Company. The
Company maonitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. The capital strecture of the Company
consists of net debt off-set by cash and bank balances and total equity.

iGearing Ratio at the end of the reparting period are as follows:

" in Lakhs
culars | | Wiareh 31, 2022 h 31,

Total Debt (including Lease Liabilities) 2,51 117.99 2,21,035.487
Less: Cash and cash equivalents [net off Book {592.22) (124120}
overdraft of ~ 53.99 Lakhs [Previous Year -
33216 Lakhs}]
Met debt 2,50 52537 2,19,794.67

otal equity 33 43874 52,194.34 |
El!ari'lg Ratlo T49.43% -ﬂl}_.ll’!ﬁ.

In arder to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongs! other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. The Company has taken series of
pro-active steps 1o mitigate, where possible, the negative financial and operational impact of COVID-18 pandemic.
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JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote Mo, 37 - Ratin Analysis

— —= ll hukhi}
AT Ko TTII “Wemerstor | DuboreMier | waarch 3% 3038 | hawren 31,3083 | Varlance
{a} |Current Ratio [Curree Assas [Cusrerd Linbdities 036 0 ?E.wﬁu
(b} |Pebi-Bguiny Ratic Tiitial Di=tit Sharehol dess' Erpatiy (AL 385 iR
fe] ek Serdce Coversgs Balio Carnings avallable For debt Deht servce = Inbenest 0.am) |oEL) -an gl
sarvice = Ned Prodit befars fpaysile B Lease Peymends ¢
+ Mon-cash operating |Principal Repaymens ol loag
mupnses | deprecialion and tierm brrowings
amortisaticn|+ Finanoe Cast+
GE st Bt ments Bk Lags on
saln of propenty, plast and
gl et
[d)  |Return om Eguity Ratio Met Profits after tanes L Aserage sharehalkder's Equity jiad) {633 LT e
e} |wvemary Turnower Ratio | Coat of Geods Seld | verape inventory 411 193 117065
ity |Trade Receivabile Tarnouer Ratip  |Neq Sales  anerage Trade Recermbie 11:54 58T SH6%
gl |Teade Payable Ralio Het Purchases + Cither Paveragps Trade Payabies 1.6 n.an 6. 25
AR RS
[h) Nt Capital timrdvet Batio Ket sales WrkAE Capils = Current {2.0a) R 4 BA6%
fvsely - Current llabilities
(i} |Mes Profn Ratic et Profa FH L e {0.61) {1.204 49505
i} |&eturn on Capital Employed Eaming hefore interas and  |Capits’ Ermployed = Tangible 0.0 (0.nay Sidugl s 3
Tameg [Rot worth + Total kng tenm
barrowings + Dusferred Tax
L akility

Reasons for variance of mone than 253 in above rakio
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(=]
i}
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Ik}
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]

Current Ratio

Debit-Equity Ratio

Rt an Equity Ratio

{Inveniory Turnouar Hatk
Trade Aecebeable Turmaves Ratio
Trade Payabls Ratia

Net Capital burnceer Ratie
Hat Profs Ratio
Return o0 Capitasl £ el

Fead resulted into payment af curnent Habdlities in current yaar

resulting in redwction of sharshobder's equity.

of average shareholder's eguity i March, 2022 period

Intrease i2 on stoownt of increase im operaticn in March, 2022 pariod as compare to March, 3021 periad
Inscrense js n stcaunt of Incredss im operaticn bn March, 2022 perlod 45 compare bo March, 3001 goriad
ImErense 4 on sccount of inoreass in operation in March, 2027 period az compare to March, 3031 peraod
increnie is on sccount of increass in operation bn March, 2022 period as compare bo Masch, 2021 period
Incrense s on sccount of increass in operaticn i March, 2022 period a2 compars 1o Masch, 2001 perod,
Inecraase |5 on account of incredss in operation in Manch, J003 period a5 esmpare 1o March, 3021 prriod.

wrrerit ratio has improve on acoount of ingredse in operation in March, 2003 period comgiare 1o BMareh, 2021 pericd

Debt-Equity ratio has incredsed on acoount of additional banmawing tiken n asrent year for Business requlramesnt
considering the: imgact of COVID-10 an hekpitality seclor. Acditanally, the compaeny i e ined lasses in current year

Segattve return on equity acreased o account of keswes inourred dusrimg thee current visr thit han resulled in reductian




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note No. 38 - Revenue from Contract with Customers:

i) Disaggregated revenue Information
St cut below is the disageregation of the companies revenue from contract with customer by type of goods or servioes:

= 1R Ef : 1 _For the year ended For the ﬂim
: | g | Hrll'r-h 3 i March 31, 2021
b [%in Lakhs i% in Lakhs)
Raarm 16,998.53 883051
Food and soft beverages 750021 3681588
Wines and liqguor 1,149,195 2655 H3
Lease rentals 2.405,12 200541
Other hospltafity services 1,751.68 M167
Total Revenue from operations 30,105.49 16.635.10

i} AH the Hotel properties generating revenue from operations are located in india, hence, there is no disaggregation of revenue
based on peogragphy.

i) Reconciliation of revenue r iged in the statement of profit and loss with contractual price.
i | o ! . For the ye: HEE'FEE r the year ended
rticutar s _ rch31,2022 | March 31, 2021
il S8 | e a
Révénie a5 per contracted price 20,548, 24 16,656.16
Adjustments
Add: Contract assets 179,66 a.rr
Less: Contract abilities [22.41} 2953
Revenue from contract with customers 30,105.49 16,635.10
iv) Contract Balances

The coniract abilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized wihen
the pedformance obligation is over [ senvices delivered.

Advance Collectlons is recognized when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied. This includes
advanes recelved from the customer towards rooms/restaurant. Revenue 15 recognized once the performance obligation is met Le.
on roorm stay [ sale of food and beverage [ provision of other hospitality services. It also includes membership fee received in
advance from customers [ members as part of membership program offered from time to time.

Contract Liabilitles:
it | v# . M"i.-E 4
|Barticulars £ &0 = mm‘%ﬁ'
. i _..-E (% in Lakhs)
Ilnnnrn& received in achance 22.41 Fa83

Mote: Considering the nature of business of the Company, the above contract liabilities are gonerally materialized as revenue within
the same apesating evele,

ph




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote Mo, 39 - Related Party Disclosurnes:

A} Namies of Related partiss
a) Investing Partias Saraf Hotels Limited
T Seas Holdings Lirmited
b) Subdidiang Comgany Mahima Holding Private Limited
¢l Key Mlanzgement Parsonnel Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf - Managing Director
d} Relative of Key Management Personnal Mr. Radhe Shivam Saraf - Chalrman (68 March 22, 2022)
Mir, Umesh Saral - Dirsctor
B, Warun Saraf- Alternate Director {Lill March 22, 2022]
&} Entities related to investing partiss Hyatt Internationals Corporation (L1.5.)
{Other related parties) Hyatt Corporation {L.5.}
HGP (Travel) Limited-Warld OF Hyatt
Resssvations Center, LLL.C. [L1.5.)

Hyatt International South West Asia {Dubai LLAE) Limited
Hyatt Intermations! Group Insurance

Hyell Chaln Services Limited (Hong Kong)
International Reservations Limited (Hong Kong)
Hyait India Consultancy private Limited

Hyatt International [Europe Africa Middleast)
Hyatt Services India Private Limited
Information Services Limited

Hyatt Regency Bellevue on Seattle's Eastside
Hyatt International (EAME) LLC

Hyatt Hote! Corporation
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JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note No. 40 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

A) Contingont Liabilities -

[a) InCoemie Tax

[} Prosperty Tax
[} Value Added Tax

(e} Luneusry Taw

B} Commitments -

Fak

1} Estirmatied armount of contracts remaining to be exacuted on capital sccount (et of capital
dvances] and not provided

| Export sbiigation under EPRCG

Mote Mo, 41 - Earnings Per Share (EPS):

= —— — -
Particulars . s : it -4 For the year emizd
= =T s March 31, 2021 |
ifrofit / {loss) atiributed to equity sharefolders { in Lakhs) [18,815.70) 119, 960,06}
Weighted average nusriber of Equity Shares outstanding (Suantity in Lakks] 1,437.00 1.437.00
Face value per share (¥} 10 1
Basic Eamlng: par Share [T) {13.09) (1))
Dikuted Earmngs per Share (T) 113,08 (1389




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMI

TED

Motes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Mote No. 42 - Expenditure in Fareign Currency {on Accrual Basis):

"W W T : Far the year ended | For the year enced

F g 17O R Particulars rerohfing. . immv;::ml 1
V_im"_} [ in Lakhs}

Consultancy fees 50.05 15.68
ravelling exponses 17.07 -

Managerment fees #1731 11401

Interest on External Commercial Barrowings 434,24 TT5.88

Cihaprs 1,(M50.85 122 2%

Tatal 2,178.52 2,135 .86

Mote Wo. 43 - Eamings in Foreign Exchango

fon Accrual Basis):

The Earming in Foresgn Eachange [on accrual bass] during the year T 2,819.91 Lakhs |(Previous year. T 1,612.12 Lakhs),

Mote Mo, 34 - Segment Reporting:

The Compary it engaged in the beiness of Haspitality [Hotels), The information s reported to and evaluated regularly by chief aperating
decision-maker {CODM] for the purpode of allocating resources and assessing performance of the Company focuses on the business as a whole
Accordingly, "Hotel Services” has been kdentilied 1o be the Compary's sole operating segment,

The Nan-current assets (other than Financial instruments, deferred tax, post-employment benefits and rights arlsing ender Insurance contracts)
are located in Indig. The Company’s major revenue is from income from rooms and sale of food and beverages (Refer Note Mo, 27). Mo single
customer coniributes more than 10% or more of the Company's total revenue for the reporting perlods,




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note No. 45 - Disclosure in respect of Leases

As a Lessor -

The Company beases spaces For retails and offices loeated within the properties under non-cancellable aperating lease for a term
of 17 months to 4E monthe The lease arrangements with the customers have varied terms, escalation clauses and renswal
rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are re-negotiated. During the year an amount of T 2,430.22 lakhs (Previous year : 7
2,042.71 lakhs) lease income has been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The following @re the disclasures of lease
rent income in respect of non-cancellable operating leases during the year:

Future minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at wear end -

VE AT AR R SR e

a) For a period not later than one year 1,4B5.05 1,732.09
|Bh For a period later than one year and not [ater than five YEdrd 338,47 1,783,613
Total 1.823.52 351572

Mote MNo. 46 - Estimation uncertalnty relating to Global Health Pandemic COVID-19 {COVID-159)

The second wave of COVID-19 has had severe impact an human Bves and the BCONOMY ACrass various states in India during April
and May 2021. Different states in India Imposed curfew restrictions in phases throughout April and May 2021, with gradual
eading in a phased manner effective June 2021. Whilst most of the hotels remained operational throughow! Apsil to June 2021
to accommodate in-house guests who preferred to stay on, all hotels in fndia remained open to business throughout the
remaining period of the current year. The consequences of the COVID-19 outbreak on the Company's business for the yea:
ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 have been severe. However, with the vaccination programs being implementad in
Indla and acrass the globe, improved domestc air travel and resurmption of international flights in india from March 27, 02z,
an increase has been witnessed in both business and leisure travel at Company’s hotels resulting In elevated gecupancies and
improved average room rates subsequent to year-end, The Indian hospitality industry has witnessed healthy recowvery from mid-
February 2022 aided by beisure, transient demand, MICE/ weddings snd gradual pickup in business travel. Further subseguent to
the year end, the hospitality sector is witnessing a rebound and the Company has akso been able 1o capitalise on the growing
demand. The management has assessed the potential impact of COVID-19 in preparation of the financial statements, Sul not
limited to its assessment of quidity and geing concern assumption, the carrying value of assets including property, plant and
equipment, right to use assels, investments, inventories, trade receivables and other assets of the Company. Based on the
current indicators of future economic conditions, the mansgement Expects to recover the carrving amounts of these auets. The
Company will continue te menitor any material changes to the future econamic conditions.

As a result of improved business conditions, management based an its assessmeni, does not foresee siress on liquidity, as it has
acoess to sufficient sanctioned barrowing facilities for working capital requirements ar has sufficient liquid funds availatdie,
besides enhanced Internal accruals due to growth in business operations,




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

MNaote Mo, 47 =

Going Concern:

As at March 31, 2022, the Company had a net current liability of T 15,115 lakhs and has also incurred Loss after tax in the
current year of T 18,816 lakhs. Basis the projections of cash flows from operations of the Company, the limits avalled under
Emergency Credit Line Government Scheme [ECLGS) but remaising unutilised and the unavalled laan facillties avalabde to the
Company bo fulfill itz obligations in the near future of 12 manths, the Company is confident that they will be able Lo discharge its
labilities and realise the carrying amount of its aswets as at March 31, 2022, During the year, the Company has availed additionsl
lpans amounting to ¥ 32,000 lakhs and also refinanced its liabilities by loan amounting to T 124,251 lakhs by deferring the
repayment to May 2024 (also backed by guarantee of Hyatt Hotels Corporation) to manage thelr medium term loan obligations.
The Company continues to maintain its track record of servicing all its debt obligation on time and is confident that they will be
able to meet all its long term loan obligations by efther infusion of funds from shareholders or alternatively thraugh external
saurces of furnds,

Based on the above, Management believes that a5 per estimates made conservatively, the Cormpany will continue as a Going
Concern and will be able o discharge its Habilities and realiss the carrying amount of k5 assets as at March 31, 2022,
Accordingly, the Company has prepared the financial statements an & going concern basis.

Note MNo. 48 - Other Statutory Infermation:

(I} The Company do not have any Benami property, where any procesding has been Initiated ar pending against the Comparny
for holding any Benami property,

(H) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(lii) The Company do not hive any charges or satisfaction which is yet 1o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

{Iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial yiar,

{v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or imvested funds to any other person(s) ar entitylies), including fecsign entitias
{Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall;

() directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ar entites identified in any manner whatsoever by &r on behalf of the
Company (Utimate Beneliciaries) or

() provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,




JUNIPER HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 21, 2022

(vi) The Company have not received any Tund from any person(s} ar entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party] with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shail:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ar entities identified in any manner whatsosver by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like an behalf of the Ultimate Benaficiaries.

{vii) The Company have no such transaction which Is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered ar
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any
ather relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961},

(vili) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with L
Companies [Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

As per owr report af even date

For SREBC&CDOLLP For and an behalf of the Baard of Dire
Chartered Accountants Juniper Hotels Private Limited
ICA] Firm Reglstration N, 324982E/E300003 - -
Fa B e
par na Kumaraswamy y i Peter Fulton
rartner Director Managing Director
Membership Mao.: 219350 DM Mo 02227963 DIN Mo, 003309772
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